
CITY OF PLYMOUTH, WISCONSIN 
TUESDAY, APRIL 9, 2024 COMMON COUNCIL MEETING  

7:00 PM COUNCIL CHAMBERS, ROOM 302 
128 SMITH ST. PLYMOUTH, WI 53073 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. Call to order and roll call 

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
3. Approval of the Consent Agenda (Alderpersons may request removal of item(s), or 

part thereof without debate or vote):  
A. Approve minutes of the meeting held Tuesday, March 26, 2024 
B. Approve City and Utility Reports: 

I. List of City & Utility Vouchers dated 03/01/2024 – 03/31/2024 
C. Minutes acknowledged for filing – Finance & Personnel Committee:  

March 26 – Library Board: February 5 and March 11 – Community 
Television: March 11 – Housing Authority: March 6 

D. Building Report for March 2024 – 28 permits at $950,068.00 
E. Approve Application for Event / Street Closure from: Plymouth 

Advancement Association for the annual Fallooza Fall Festival on Saturday, 
September 14, 2024 from 7 AM – 5 PM. Request to close Mill St. west of 
Eastern Ave. to Caroline St. 

F. Approve Application for a “Class B” Reserve Liquor License and Class “B” 
Beer License for Big Billy’s Family LLC, at 437 E Mill St. Approved by the 
Clerk’s Office and Police Department.   

G. Receive and File Annual Liquor License Report 
 

4. Audience Comments: Citizens comments must be recognized by the mayor or 
presiding officer and are limited to three minutes per person from those signed in on 
the registration sheet located at the back of the Council Chambers prior to the start 
of the meeting. 

 
5. Items removed from Consent Agenda: 

 
6. Proclamations:  

A. Recognition of Writers of the Future Week April 21 – April 27, 2024 – 
Don Pohlman, Mayor 

B. Recognition of Arbor Day in the City of Plymouth April 26, 2024 – Don 
Polman, Mayor 

C. Recognition of National Library Week April 7 – April 13, 2024 – Don 
Pohlman, Mayor 

 
7. Resolution: 

A. No. 3 – Approving the City of Plymouth Adjusted US Census Bureau 
Urban Area Boundary – Tim Blakeslee, City Administrator/Utilities 
Manager 

 
 
 



B. No. 4 – Resolution Authorizing the Partial Redemption of the City's 
General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A, dated September 19, 
2013; General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2015A, dated June 3, 
2015; and General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016A, dated May 
18, 2016 

 
8. New Business: 

A. Approve Transformer Bid from Pennsylvania Transformer Technologies, 
Inc – Tim Blakeslee, City Administrator/Utilities Manager 

 
9. Entertain a motion to go into closed session for the following 

Pursuant to Wis. Stat. 19.85 (1)(g) conferring with legal counsel for the government body 
who is rendering oral or written advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with 
respect to litigation in which it is or is likely to become involved regarding – Public 
Service Commission docket 4740-CE-106 

 
10. Entertain a Motion to go into Open Session 

 
11. Discussion and Possible Action on Closed Session Item 

 
12. Adjourn to 7:00 PM on Tuesday, April 16, 2024 

 
It is likely a quorum of members of other governmental bodies of the municipality may be in attendance at the above stated meeting to 
gather information.  No action will be taken by any governmental body at the above stated meeting other than the governmental body 
specifically referred to above in this notice. 
 
Please note that, upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate 
aids and services.  For additional information or to request this service, please contact the City of Plymouth ADA Coordinator Leah 
Federwisch, located in the Plymouth Utilities office at 900 County Road PP, Plymouth, WI or call 920-893-3853.  



CITY OF PLYMOUTH, WISCONSIN 
TUESDAY, MARCH 26, 2024 COMMON COUNCIL MEETING  

128 SMITH ST. PLYMOUTH, WI 53073 
 

UNOFFICIAL MINUTES 
 

1. Call to order and roll call: Mayor Donald Pohlman called the meeting to order at 7:00 
PM. On the call of the roll, the following Alderpersons were preset: Angie Matzdorf, 
Diane Gilson, Mike Penkwitz, Jeff Tauscheck, John Nelson, Dave Herrmann, and Bob 
Schilsky. Also present were: City Administrator/Utilities Manager Tim Blakeslee, 
Director of Public Works Cathy Austin, Police Chief Ken Ruggles, Deputy Police Chief 
Matt Starker and City Clerk Anna Voigt. 

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
3. Approval of the Consent Agenda (Alderpersons may request removal of item(s), or 

part thereof without debate or vote): Motion was made by Tauscheck/Matzdorf to 
approve the consent agenda. Upon the call of the roll, all voted aye. Motion carried. 

A. Approve minutes of the meeting held March 12, 2024 
B. Approve City and Utility Reports: 

I. Electric, Water and Sewer Sales Report – February 2024 
II. Utility Related Write Offs for March – $2,003.80 

C. Minutes acknowledged for filing –Housing Authority: March 6  
D. Approve Request to Sell Department of Public Works Surplus Equipment 

 
4. Audience Comments: Citizens comments must be recognized by the mayor or 

presiding officer and are limited to three minutes per person from those signed in on 
the registration sheet located at the back of the Council Chambers prior to the start of 
the meeting: None 

 
5. Items removed from Consent Agenda: None 

 
6. Public Hearing followed by Discussion and Action: 

A. No. 4 An Ordinance Creating Sec 13-1-28 of the City of Plymouth, 
Wisconsin Zoning Code Regarding Creation of R-6 High Density Multi-
Family Residential District – Mayor Pohlman declared the public hearing 
open at 7:04 PM regarding Ordinance No. 4. Blakeslee explained the 
development of a Comprehensive Housing Strategy is one of the key 
initiatives as part of 2023-2026 City of Plymouth Strategic Plan. The 
Comprehensive Plan noted that over 1,000 new housing units will be needed 
in the City in the next 20 years. Over the past few months, the Ad-Hoc 
Housing Committee collected information regarding the needs, opportunities, 
and challenges of housing in Plymouth. The Housing committee unanimously 
recommended the creation of an R6 zoning district in Chapter 13 to allow for 
the construction of multi-family residential buildings with more than 12 units. 
There being no public comments the Mayor called the Public Hearing closed. 
Motion was made by Nelson/Hildebrand to approve Ordinance No. 4 as 
stated. Upon the call of the roll, all voted aye. Motion carried. 

 
 



7. New Business: 
A. Discussion and Possible Action on Certificate of Authority for Plymouth 

Utilities Storage Building with Forster Electrical Engineering–
Administrator/Utilities Manager Blakeslee explained an indoor storage facility 
has been planned for Plymouth Utilities equipment for more than five years. 
Currently, a significant portion of the equipment sits outdoors and is also 
exposed to the elements. For any Utilities project with a total cost that is 
anticipated to be more than $1,353,000 a Certificate of Authority (CA) must 
be granted by the Public Service Commission prior to work commencing. 
Based on initial estimates, the total cost of the Utility storage Building project 
will be close to or will exceed threshold for a CA. Motion was made by 
Penkwitz/Hildebrand to approve the proposal from Forster Electrical 
Engineering to prepare and manage a Certificate of Authority for Plymouth 
Utilities Storage Building. Upon the call of the roll, all voted aye. Motion 
carried. 

 
8. Adjourn to 7:00 PM on Tuesday, April 9, 2024: Motion was made by 

Herrmann/Tauscheck to adjourn the meeting. A unanimous aye vote was cast. Motion 
carried. 



CITY OF PLYMOUTH Payment Approval Report - Council Voucher Report City & Utility Page:     1

Report dates: 3/1/2024-3/31/2024 Apr 02, 2024  08:01AM

Report Criteria:

Detail report.

Invoices with totals above $0 included.

Paid and unpaid invoices included.

Invoice Detail.GL account = "0100100001000"-"2200567002200","2400111000000"-"8000232000000"

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount Amount Paid Date Paid

10175

10175 AURORA HEALTH CARE 66513 DRUG SCREEN 03/17/2024 145.00 145.00 03/28/2024

Total 10175: 145.00 145.00

10305

10305 BOARDMAN & CLARK LLP 281493 LEGAL SERVICE 03/14/2024 1,745.25 1,745.25 03/21/2024

Total 10305: 1,745.25 1,745.25

10325

10325 BORDER STATES ELECTRIC SU 927940627 PAD, FOR PMH-10 02/29/2024 6,150.00 6,150.00 03/21/2024

10325 BORDER STATES ELECTRIC SU 927940627 FRIEGHT 02/29/2024 800.00 800.00 03/21/2024

10325 BORDER STATES ELECTRIC SU 927948223 SMALL ARRESTER COVER 03/01/2024 1,005.12 1,005.12 03/21/2024

10325 BORDER STATES ELECTRIC SU 927948223 SHIPPING 03/01/2024 54.42 54.42 03/21/2024

10325 BORDER STATES ELECTRIC SU 928013856 3/8" EHS GUY WIRE 03/13/2024 579.31 579.31 03/28/2024

Total 10325: 8,588.85 8,588.85

10720

10720 FERGUSON WATERWORKS #14 0410112 CURB BOX - 1 1/4" X 7 1/2' 03/08/2024 428.00 428.00 03/28/2024

10720 FERGUSON WATERWORKS #14 0410112 VALVE BOX TOP - 26". 03/08/2024 860.00 860.00 03/28/2024

Total 10720: 1,288.00 1,288.00

10878

10878 EAST CENTRAL PUMPING INC 20533 SEWER JETTING SERVICE 03/04/2024 3,950.00 3,950.00 03/21/2024

Total 10878: 3,950.00 3,950.00

10905

10905 ELECTRICAL TESTING LAB LLC 41273 SAFETY EQUIPMENT 03/07/2024 2,063.15 2,063.15 03/21/2024

10905 ELECTRICAL TESTING LAB LLC 41289 SAFETY EQUIPMENT 03/12/2024 21.63 21.63 03/21/2024

Total 10905: 2,084.78 2,084.78

11025

11025 FASSE DECORATING CENTER  1-167700 STREET SIGNS & MARKINGS M 03/15/2024 3,838.50 3,838.50 03/28/2024

Total 11025: 3,838.50 3,838.50

11040

11040 FELDMANN SALES & SERVICE I 35238 FLEET VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 03/12/2024 71.94 71.94 03/28/2024

Total 11040: 71.94 71.94

11155

11155 GRITTS AUTO SERVICE 41808 FLEET VEHICLE SERVICE 03/06/2024 80.00 80.00 03/21/2024

Total 11155: 80.00 80.00



CITY OF PLYMOUTH Payment Approval Report - Council Voucher Report City & Utility Page:     2

Report dates: 3/1/2024-3/31/2024 Apr 02, 2024  08:01AM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount Amount Paid Date Paid

11560

11560 KW ELECTRIC INC 240542 BUILDINGS & GROUNDS 03/11/2024 1,173.36 1,173.36 03/28/2024

Total 11560: 1,173.36 1,173.36

11770

11770 MEYER MOTORS INC 140604 GARAGE SMALL EQUIPMEN RE 03/04/2024 314.96 314.96 03/14/2024

Total 11770: 314.96 314.96

11815

11815 MIKE BURKART FORD INC 325953 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE FIRE 02/23/2024 58.95 58.95 03/07/2024

11815 MIKE BURKART FORD INC STMT 2-29-202 326041 02/29/2024 964.28 964.28 03/14/2024

Total 11815: 1,023.23 1,023.23

11835

11835 MILLER & BOELDT INC 90211 TREE CONTROL EQUIPMENT R 03/06/2024 63.84 63.84 03/14/2024

11835 MILLER & BOELDT INC 90220 TREE CONTROL EQUIPMENT R 03/08/2024 53.99 53.99 03/14/2024

11835 MILLER & BOELDT INC R726005 GARAGE LARGE EQUIPMENT R 03/07/2024 544.30 544.30 03/21/2024

Total 11835: 662.13 662.13

11875

11875 SECURIAN FINANCIAL GROUP I April 2024 Stm EE CONTRIBUTION-UTILITIES 03/05/2024 393.35 393.35 03/07/2024

11875 SECURIAN FINANCIAL GROUP I April 2024 Stm BASIC PREMIUM-UTILITIES 03/05/2024 325.48 325.48 03/07/2024

11875 SECURIAN FINANCIAL GROUP I April 2024 Stm ER CONTRIBUTION-UTILITIES 03/05/2024 65.09 65.09 03/07/2024

11875 SECURIAN FINANCIAL GROUP I April 2024 Stm EE CONTRIBUTION-CITY 03/05/2024 518.48 518.48 03/07/2024

11875 SECURIAN FINANCIAL GROUP I April 2024 Stm BASIC PREMIUM-CITY 03/05/2024 336.44 336.44 03/07/2024

11875 SECURIAN FINANCIAL GROUP I April 2024 Stm ER CONTRIBUTION-CITY 03/05/2024 67.29 67.29 03/07/2024

Total 11875: 1,706.13 1,706.13

12216

12216 PLYMOUTH LUBRICANTS 6200805 GARAGE GAS & OIL 02/20/2024 65.00- .00

Total 12216: 65.00- .00

12230

12230 PIGGLY WIGGLY 1492 GOLF COURSE CONCESSIONS 03/05/2024 62.91 62.91 03/14/2024

12230 PIGGLY WIGGLY 8113 FROM 3- ELECTION BEVERAGES 03/12/2024 49.92 49.92 03/14/2024

Total 12230: 112.83 112.83

12250

12250 PLYMOUTH UTILITIES-PC STMT031224 PETTY CASH 03/12/2024 1.99 1.99 03/14/2024

12250 PLYMOUTH UTILITIES-PC STMT031224 PETTY CASH 03/12/2024 34.95 34.95 03/14/2024

12250 PLYMOUTH UTILITIES-PC STMT031224 PETTY CASH 03/12/2024 41.97 41.97 03/14/2024

12250 PLYMOUTH UTILITIES-PC STMT031224 PETTY CASH 03/12/2024 42.64 42.64 03/14/2024

12250 PLYMOUTH UTILITIES-PC STMT031224 PETTY CASH 03/12/2024 59.25 59.25 03/14/2024

12250 PLYMOUTH UTILITIES-PC STMT031224 PETTY CASH 03/12/2024 81.25 81.25 03/14/2024

12250 PLYMOUTH UTILITIES-PC STMT031224 PETTY CASH 03/12/2024 33.93 33.93 03/14/2024

12250 PLYMOUTH UTILITIES-PC STMT031224 PETTY CASH 03/12/2024 30.00 30.00 03/14/2024

Total 12250: 325.98 325.98

12255

12255 PLYMOUTH UTILITIES STMT030724 PUBLIC BENEFITS 03/07/2024 728.08 728.08 03/07/2024



CITY OF PLYMOUTH Payment Approval Report - Council Voucher Report City & Utility Page:     3

Report dates: 3/1/2024-3/31/2024 Apr 02, 2024  08:01AM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount Amount Paid Date Paid

12255 PLYMOUTH UTILITIES STMT031924 PUBLIC BENEFITS 03/19/2024 1,962.18 1,962.18 03/21/2024

12255 PLYMOUTH UTILITIES STMT032124 PUBLIC BENEFITS 03/21/2024 2,277.27 2,277.27 03/21/2024

Total 12255: 4,967.53 4,967.53

12265

12265 POMPS TIRE SERVICE INC 70135200 GARAGE LARGE EQUIPMENT C 03/06/2024 3,052.61 3,052.61 03/14/2024

12265 POMPS TIRE SERVICE INC 70135272 TREE CONTROL EQUIPMENT R 03/05/2024 273.92 273.92 03/14/2024

12265 POMPS TIRE SERVICE INC 70135272 PARKS EQUIPMENT REPAIR &  03/05/2024 59.82 59.82 03/14/2024

Total 12265: 3,386.35 3,386.35

12315

12315 PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 2402-I-04740 ASSESSMENT 03/14/2024 1,360.54 1,360.54 03/21/2024

Total 12315: 1,360.54 1,360.54

12335

12335 QUALITY STATE OIL CO 6904770 GAS INVENTORY DIESEL 02/06/2024 5,449.60 5,449.60 03/14/2024

12335 QUALITY STATE OIL CO 6904780 GAS INVENTORY 02/06/2024 2,477.51 2,477.51 03/14/2024

12335 QUALITY STATE OIL CO 6908770 GAS INVENTORY 03/11/2024 4,768.40 4,768.40 03/21/2024

Total 12335: 12,695.51 12,695.51

12380

12380 REGISTRATION FEE TRUST STMT031924 LICENSE PLATE FEE 03/19/2024 169.50 169.50 03/21/2024

Total 12380: 169.50 169.50

12400

12400 RESCO INC 3024672 ARRESTER, PARKING STAND 1 03/01/2024 1,831.60 1,831.60 03/14/2024

12400 RESCO INC 3024672 DISCOUNT 03/01/2024 .92- .92- 03/14/2024

12400 RESCO INC 3024673 BUSHING, INSULATED CAP W/G 03/01/2024 726.82 726.82 03/14/2024

12400 RESCO INC 3024673 DISCOUNT 03/01/2024 .36- .36- 03/14/2024

12400 RESCO INC 3024909 100 WATT HPS BULBS 03/05/2024 579.20 579.20 03/14/2024

12400 RESCO INC 3024909 FREIGHT 03/05/2024 32.44 32.44 03/14/2024

12400 RESCO INC 3024909 DISCOUNT 03/05/2024 .29- .29- 03/14/2024

12400 RESCO INC 3025351 SPLICE, 600V URD REPAIR JKT  03/07/2024 648.93 648.93 03/21/2024

12400 RESCO INC 3025351 DISCOUNT 03/07/2024 .32- .32- 03/21/2024

12400 RESCO INC 3025376 WHITE AMPACT SHELL 03/07/2024 94.44 94.44 03/21/2024

12400 RESCO INC 3025376 FREIGHT 03/07/2024 15.81 15.81 03/21/2024

12400 RESCO INC 3025376 DISCOUNT 03/07/2024 .05- .05- 03/21/2024

12400 RESCO INC 3025487 PEDESTAL,  SGL PH PRI JUNCT 03/08/2024 11,935.53 11,935.53 03/21/2024

12400 RESCO INC 3025487 DISCOUNT 03/08/2024 5.97- 5.97- 03/21/2024

12400 RESCO INC 3025650 ARRESTER, PARKING STAND 1 03/11/2024 1,968.96 1,968.96 03/21/2024

12400 RESCO INC 3025650 DISCOUNT 03/11/2024 .98- .98- 03/21/2024

12400 RESCO INC 3026005 BUS BAR TAPE GRAY 03/14/2024 263.52 263.52 03/21/2024

12400 RESCO INC 3026005 FREIGHT 03/14/2024 15.85 15.85 03/21/2024

12400 RESCO INC 3026005 DISCOUNT 03/14/2024 .13- .13- 03/21/2024

Total 12400: 18,104.08 18,104.08

12575

12575 SHEBOYGAN COUNTY HIGHWA 132640 ROAD REPAIR SERVICE 01/31/2024 906.33 .00

Total 12575: 906.33 .00



CITY OF PLYMOUTH Payment Approval Report - Council Voucher Report City & Utility Page:     4

Report dates: 3/1/2024-3/31/2024 Apr 02, 2024  08:01AM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount Amount Paid Date Paid

12696

12696 STOP PROCESSING CENTER 20469 AUTOPAY SERVICE 03/01/2024 25.86 25.86 03/07/2024

Total 12696: 25.86 25.86

12750

12750 SUPERIOR CHEMICAL LLC 386034 GARAGE GAS & OIL 03/08/2024 134.88 134.88 03/14/2024

12750 SUPERIOR CHEMICAL LLC 386723 WWTP CLEANING SUPPLIES 03/18/2024 120.00 120.00 03/28/2024

Total 12750: 254.88 254.88

12882

12882 SPECTRUM 152367101030 INTERNET 03/01/2024 129.98 129.98 03/14/2024

12882 SPECTRUM 160218701030 PHONE LINES - UTILITIES 03/01/2024 159.96 159.96 03/21/2024

12882 SPECTRUM 160218701030 PHONE - FIRE 03/01/2024 39.99 39.99 03/21/2024

12882 SPECTRUM 160218701030 PHONE - POLICE 03/01/2024 39.99 39.99 03/21/2024

12882 SPECTRUM 160218701030 PHONE - EVERGREEN GOLF 03/01/2024 39.99 39.99 03/21/2024

12882 SPECTRUM 160218701030 PHONE LINES - CITY 03/01/2024 119.97 119.97 03/21/2024

12882 SPECTRUM 160218701030 INTERNET 03/01/2024 819.00 819.00 03/21/2024

12882 SPECTRUM 160218701030 PRI - UTILITIES 03/01/2024 275.04 275.04 03/21/2024

12882 SPECTRUM 160218701030 PRI - CITY 03/01/2024 135.46 135.46 03/21/2024

12882 SPECTRUM CH STMT 03-1 PHONE - POLICE 03/25/2024 39.13 39.13 03/28/2024

12882 SPECTRUM YC STMT 3-15- UTILITIES - YOUTH CENTER 03/25/2024 13.04 13.04 03/28/2024

Total 12882: 1,811.55 1,811.55

12965

12965 US CELLULAR 0640557637 CELL PHONE - EMPLOYEES 03/08/2024 2,201.67 2,201.67 03/21/2024

12965 US CELLULAR 0640557637 CELL PHONE - STREETS 03/08/2024 42.50 42.50 03/21/2024

12965 US CELLULAR 0640557637 CELL PHONES - PARKS 03/08/2024 43.00 43.00 03/21/2024

12965 US CELLULAR 0640557637 CELL PHONE SERVICE - POOL 03/08/2024 39.50 39.50 03/21/2024

12965 US CELLULAR 0640557637 CELL PHONES - POLICE 03/08/2024 353.08 353.08 03/21/2024

12965 US CELLULAR 0640557637 CELL PHONE SERVICE (FIRE) 03/08/2024 294.00 294.00 03/21/2024

12965 US CELLULAR 0640557637 CELL PHONE SERVICE (UTILITI 03/08/2024 823.24 823.24 03/21/2024

12965 US CELLULAR 0640881161 CELL MODEM - POLICE 03/10/2024 237.12 237.12 03/28/2024

12965 US CELLULAR 0640881161 CELL MODEM - ELECTRIC 03/10/2024 39.52 39.52 03/28/2024

12965 US CELLULAR 0640881161 CELL MODEM - ELECTRIC 2 03/10/2024 44.61 44.61 03/28/2024

12965 US CELLULAR 0640881161 CELL MODEM - BACKUP INTER 03/10/2024 39.52 39.52 03/28/2024

Total 12965: 4,157.76 4,157.76

13170

13170 WISCONSIN NEWSPRESS 5352 RENEWA 2024 RENEWAL - C 02/19/2024 32.67 32.67 03/07/2024

13170 WISCONSIN NEWSPRESS 5352 RENEWA 2024 RENEWAL - T 02/19/2024 16.33 16.33 03/07/2024

13170 WISCONSIN NEWSPRESS STMT 2-29-202 WISCONSIN NEWSPRESS - GF- 02/29/2024 341.95 341.95 03/21/2024

13170 WISCONSIN NEWSPRESS STMT 2-29-202 STREET PROJECT 02/29/2024 213.80 213.80 03/21/2024

Total 13170: 604.75 604.75

13221

13221 WEX BANK 95786744 FLEET FUELING 03/15/2024 2,352.90 2,352.90 03/21/2024

13221 WEX BANK 95786744 FLEET FUELING 03/15/2024 666.45 666.45 03/21/2024

13221 WEX BANK 95786744 FLEET FUELING 03/15/2024 107.78 107.78 03/21/2024

Total 13221: 3,127.13 3,127.13

30019

30019 ARING EQUIPMENT COMPANY I 647492 GARAGE LARGE EQUIPMENT &  02/19/2024 107.25 107.25 03/07/2024



CITY OF PLYMOUTH Payment Approval Report - Council Voucher Report City & Utility Page:     5

Report dates: 3/1/2024-3/31/2024 Apr 02, 2024  08:01AM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount Amount Paid Date Paid

Total 30019: 107.25 107.25

30025

30025 B D AUTO & TRUCK BODY 16226 GARAGE LARGE EQUIPMENT R 03/05/2024 450.00 450.00 03/21/2024

Total 30025: 450.00 450.00

30028

30028 BAKER & TAYLOR 2038117327 BOOKS - LIBRARY 02/21/2024 480.85 480.85 03/07/2024

30028 BAKER & TAYLOR 2038117327 SHIPPING - LIBRARY 02/21/2024 9.62 9.62 03/07/2024

30028 BAKER & TAYLOR 2038117805 BOOKS - LIBRARY 02/21/2024 231.64 231.64 03/07/2024

30028 BAKER & TAYLOR 2038117805 SHIPPING - LIBRARY 02/21/2024 4.63 4.63 03/07/2024

30028 BAKER & TAYLOR 2038122926 BOOKS - LIBRARY 02/23/2024 131.19 131.19 03/07/2024

30028 BAKER & TAYLOR 2038122926 SHIPPING - LIBRARY 02/23/2024 2.62 2.62 03/07/2024

30028 BAKER & TAYLOR 2038127935 BOOKS - LIBRARY 02/27/2024 259.47 259.47 03/14/2024

30028 BAKER & TAYLOR 2038127935 SHIPPING - LIBRARY 02/27/2024 5.19 5.19 03/14/2024

30028 BAKER & TAYLOR 2038136806 BOOKS - LIBRARY 03/01/2024 267.94 267.94 03/14/2024

30028 BAKER & TAYLOR 2038136806 SHIPPING - LIBRARY 03/01/2024 5.36 5.36 03/14/2024

30028 BAKER & TAYLOR 2038140065 BOOKS - LIBRARY 03/04/2024 781.87 781.87 03/14/2024

30028 BAKER & TAYLOR 2038140065 SHIPPING - LIBRARY 03/04/2024 15.64 15.64 03/14/2024

30028 BAKER & TAYLOR 2038140096 BOOKS - LIBRARY 03/04/2024 394.88 394.88 03/14/2024

30028 BAKER & TAYLOR 2038140096 SHIPPING - LIBRARY 03/04/2024 7.90 7.90 03/14/2024

30028 BAKER & TAYLOR 2038148612 BOOKS - LIBRARY 03/07/2024 294.14 294.14 03/21/2024

30028 BAKER & TAYLOR 2038148612 SHIPPING - LIBRARY 03/07/2024 5.88 5.88 03/21/2024

30028 BAKER & TAYLOR 2038151284 BOOKS - LIBRARY 03/08/2024 240.94 240.94 03/21/2024

30028 BAKER & TAYLOR 2038151284 SHIPPING - LIBRARY 03/08/2024 4.82 4.82 03/21/2024

30028 BAKER & TAYLOR 2038153504 BOOKS - LIBRARY 03/11/2024 312.10 312.10 03/21/2024

30028 BAKER & TAYLOR 2038153504 SHIPPING - LIBRARY 03/11/2024 6.24 6.24 03/21/2024

30028 BAKER & TAYLOR 2038165690 BOOKS - LIBRARY 03/15/2024 337.59 337.59 03/28/2024

30028 BAKER & TAYLOR 2038165690 SHIPPING - LIBRARY 03/15/2024 6.75 6.75 03/28/2024

30028 BAKER & TAYLOR 2038167836 BOOKS - LIBRARY 03/15/2024 216.58 216.58 03/28/2024

30028 BAKER & TAYLOR 2038167836 SHIPPING - LIBRARY 03/15/2024 4.33 4.33 03/28/2024

Total 30028: 4,028.17 4,028.17

30053

30053 CASPERS TRUCK EQUIPMENT 60123-IN GARAGE SMALL EQUIPMENT R 03/05/2024 79.78 79.78 03/14/2024

Total 30053: 79.78 79.78

30055

30055 CEDAR CREEK SURVEYING LL 2023120E-D SUBSTATION 5 02/29/2024 2,375.00 2,375.00 03/14/2024

Total 30055: 2,375.00 2,375.00

30073

30073 COMPLETE OFFICE OF WI 658528 OFFICE SUPPLIES - POLICE 03/01/2024 30.42 30.42 03/07/2024

30073 COMPLETE OFFICE OF WI 669197 MATERIALS SUPPLIES - LIBRAR 03/18/2024 78.39 78.39 03/21/2024

30073 COMPLETE OFFICE OF WI 672832 COPY MACHINE - LIBRARY 03/22/2024 77.94 77.94 03/28/2024

30073 COMPLETE OFFICE OF WI 674262 COPY MACHINE - LIBRARY 03/26/2024 401.59 401.59 03/28/2024

30073 COMPLETE OFFICE OF WI AR62900 COPY MACHINE CLERK OFFICE 03/15/2024 112.99 112.99 03/21/2024

30073 COMPLETE OFFICE OF WI AR62903 COPY MACHINE - LIBRARY 03/15/2024 41.85 41.85 03/21/2024

30073 COMPLETE OFFICE OF WI AR62904 COPY MACHINE - LIBRARY 03/15/2024 82.23 82.23 03/21/2024

Total 30073: 825.41 825.41



CITY OF PLYMOUTH Payment Approval Report - Council Voucher Report City & Utility Page:     6

Report dates: 3/1/2024-3/31/2024 Apr 02, 2024  08:01AM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount Amount Paid Date Paid

30075

30075 CONWAY SHIELDS 0518916 FD EQUIPMENT - C 02/26/2024 586.67 586.67 03/07/2024

30075 CONWAY SHIELDS 0518916 FD EQUIPMENT - T 02/26/2024 293.33 293.33 03/07/2024

Total 30075: 880.00 880.00

30087

30087 DENNIS HALLORAN STMT 3-19-202 VETERANS TRAIL REIMBURSE 03/19/2024 153.89 153.89 03/28/2024

Total 30087: 153.89 153.89

30105

30105 DPI 100931 MATERIALS SUPPLIES - LIBRAR 03/14/2024 139.70 139.70 03/21/2024

Total 30105: 139.70 139.70

30120

30120 ENVISIONWARE INC INV-US-69781 SOFTWARE SERVER MIGRATIO 02/23/2024 585.00 585.00 03/28/2024

30120 ENVISIONWARE INC INV-US-69782 SOFTWARE SERVER MIGRATIO 02/23/2024 1,170.00 1,170.00 03/28/2024

Total 30120: 1,755.00 1,755.00

30135

30135 GALE/CENGAGE LEARNING 83962052 BOOKS - LIBRARY 02/26/2024 24.00 24.00 03/07/2024

30135 GALE/CENGAGE LEARNING 83962210 BOOKS - LIBRARY 02/26/2024 24.79 24.79 03/07/2024

30135 GALE/CENGAGE LEARNING 83982801 BOOKS - LIBRARY 02/29/2024 25.60 25.60 03/14/2024

30135 GALE/CENGAGE LEARNING 83985796 BOOKS - LIBRARY 03/01/2024 46.13 46.13 03/14/2024

30135 GALE/CENGAGE LEARNING 84001924 BOOKS - LIBRARY 03/05/2024 121.56 121.56 03/14/2024

30135 GALE/CENGAGE LEARNING 84008852 BOOKS - LIBRARY 03/06/2024 31.99 31.99 03/14/2024

30135 GALE/CENGAGE LEARNING 84009093 BOOKS - LIBRARY 03/06/2024 30.39 30.39 03/14/2024

30135 GALE/CENGAGE LEARNING 84063785 BOOKS - LIBRARY 03/18/2024 24.00 24.00 03/28/2024

30135 GALE/CENGAGE LEARNING 84065265 BOOKS - LIBRARY 03/18/2024 24.80 24.80 03/28/2024

30135 GALE/CENGAGE LEARNING 84074419 BOOKS - LIBRARY 03/20/2024 24.79 24.79 03/28/2024

30135 GALE/CENGAGE LEARNING 84075622 BOOKS - LIBRARY 03/20/2024 28.79 28.79 03/28/2024

30135 GALE/CENGAGE LEARNING 84084151 BOOKS - LIBRARY 03/21/2024 22.09 22.09 03/28/2024

Total 30135: 428.93 428.93

30136

30136 GALLS LLC 24613469 UNIFORMS - FIRE - CITY 05/25/2023 60.66 60.66 03/21/2024

30136 GALLS LLC 24613469 UNIFORMS - FIRE - TOWN 05/25/2023 30.33 30.33 03/21/2024

Total 30136: 90.99 90.99

30150

30150 GREAT AMERICA FINANCIAL SE 36174636 COPY MACHINE - LIBRARY 03/20/2024 157.59 157.59 03/28/2024

Total 30150: 157.59 157.59

30164

30164 HORST DISTRIBUTING INC 106722-000 EVERGREEN GOLF COURSE M 03/11/2024 1,370.05 1,370.05 03/21/2024

Total 30164: 1,370.05 1,370.05

30165

30165 HOSPITAL SISTERS HEALTH SY STMT 3-3-2024 OWI 03/03/2024 93.00 93.00 03/21/2024



CITY OF PLYMOUTH Payment Approval Report - Council Voucher Report City & Utility Page:     7

Report dates: 3/1/2024-3/31/2024 Apr 02, 2024  08:01AM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount Amount Paid Date Paid

Total 30165: 93.00 93.00

30173

30173 INDWIS INC STMT 3-27-202 CONTRACT - ZONING 03/27/2024 1,200.00 1,200.00 03/28/2024

30173 INDWIS INC STMT 3-27-202 BUILDING INSPECTION 03/27/2024 3,169.80 3,169.80 03/28/2024

Total 30173: 4,369.80 4,369.80

30204

30204 LANGUAGE LINE SERVICES 11235910 TRANSLATION SERVICES 02/29/2024 60.00 60.00 03/21/2024

Total 30204: 60.00 60.00

30216

30216 MARCO 36042410 PRINTER CONTRACT 02/29/2024 152.90 152.90 03/21/2024

30216 MARCO INV12315773 PRINTER CONTRACT 03/22/2024 80.90 80.90 03/28/2024

Total 30216: 233.80 233.80

30227

30227 MENARDS 031524STMT BUILD MAINT - LIBRARY 03/15/2024 44.07 44.07 03/21/2024

30227 MENARDS 82831 GARAGE BUILDING MAINT 03/06/2024 336.98 336.98 03/14/2024

30227 MENARDS 82913 STORM SEWERS MATERIALS 03/08/2024 93.87 93.87 03/14/2024

30227 MENARDS 83055 STORM SEWER MATERIALS 03/11/2024 38.50 38.50 03/14/2024

30227 MENARDS 83110 STORM SEWER MATERIALS 03/12/2024 136.21 136.21 03/14/2024

30227 MENARDS 83318 STREET SIGNS & MARKINGS M 03/18/2024 176.94 176.94 03/21/2024

Total 30227: 826.57 826.57

30238

30238 MONARCH LIBRARY SYSTEM 416214 MARKETING  - LIBRARY 03/15/2024 154.80 154.80 03/21/2024

Total 30238: 154.80 154.80

30247

30247 NAPA AUTO PARTS OF SHEBOY 15261 EVERGREEN GOLF COURSE E 02/29/2024 28.66 28.66 03/07/2024

30247 NAPA AUTO PARTS OF SHEBOY 15697 PARKS EQUIPMENT REPAIR &  03/06/2024 53.57 53.57 03/14/2024

30247 NAPA AUTO PARTS OF SHEBOY 16120 GARAGE SMALL EQUIPMENT R 03/12/2024 7.49 7.49 03/21/2024

30247 NAPA AUTO PARTS OF SHEBOY 16121 GARAGE SMALL EQUIPMENT R 03/12/2024 198.49 198.49 03/21/2024

30247 NAPA AUTO PARTS OF SHEBOY 16220 EVERGREEN GOLF COURSE E 03/13/2024 198.99 198.99 03/21/2024

30247 NAPA AUTO PARTS OF SHEBOY 16222 GARAGE SMALL EQUIPMENT R 03/13/2024 890.50 890.50 03/28/2024

30247 NAPA AUTO PARTS OF SHEBOY 16223 GARAGE LARGE EQUIPMENT R 03/13/2024 895.93 895.93 03/28/2024

30247 NAPA AUTO PARTS OF SHEBOY 16225 GARAGE LARGE EQUIPMENT R 03/13/2024 679.54 679.54 03/28/2024

30247 NAPA AUTO PARTS OF SHEBOY 16226 PARKS EQUIPMENT REPAIR &  03/13/2024 385.87 385.87 03/28/2024

30247 NAPA AUTO PARTS OF SHEBOY 16380 GARAGE SMALL EQUIPMENT R 03/15/2024 39.09 39.09 03/21/2024

30247 NAPA AUTO PARTS OF SHEBOY 16414 GARAGE SMALL EQUIPMENT R 03/15/2024 209.45- 209.45- 03/28/2024

30247 NAPA AUTO PARTS OF SHEBOY 16415 GARAGE SMALL EQUIPMENT R 03/15/2024 74.43- 74.43- 03/21/2024

30247 NAPA AUTO PARTS OF SHEBOY 16421 GARAGE SMALL EQUIPMENT R 03/15/2024 26.45 26.45 03/21/2024

30247 NAPA AUTO PARTS OF SHEBOY 16429 GARAGE LARGE EQUIPMENT R 03/15/2024 42.39 42.39 03/21/2024

30247 NAPA AUTO PARTS OF SHEBOY 16506 GARAGE SMALL EQUIPMENT R 03/18/2024 77.89 77.89 03/21/2024

30247 NAPA AUTO PARTS OF SHEBOY 16512 GARAGE LARGE EQUIPMENT R 03/18/2024 5.34 5.34 03/21/2024

30247 NAPA AUTO PARTS OF SHEBOY 16513 GARAGE LARGE EQUIPMENT R 03/18/2024 5.34 5.34 03/21/2024

30247 NAPA AUTO PARTS OF SHEBOY 16557 GARAGE SMALL EQUIPMENT R 03/18/2024 8.07 8.07 03/21/2024

Total 30247: 3,259.73 3,259.73



CITY OF PLYMOUTH Payment Approval Report - Council Voucher Report City & Utility Page:     8

Report dates: 3/1/2024-3/31/2024 Apr 02, 2024  08:01AM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount Amount Paid Date Paid

30252

30252 NEENAH FOUNDRY 144574 STORM SEWER MATERIALS 03/11/2024 1,832.00 1,832.00 03/21/2024

Total 30252: 1,832.00 1,832.00

30264

30264 OTIS ELEVATOR COMPANY 100401487228 ELEVATOR - LIBRARY 03/11/2024 2,385.36 2,385.36 03/21/2024

Total 30264: 2,385.36 2,385.36

30277

30277 PLYMOUTH COMMUNITY TELE STMT 3-26-202 MARCH PAYMENT 03/26/2024 16,316.66 16,316.66 03/28/2024

Total 30277: 16,316.66 16,316.66

30290

30290 PREVEA HEALTH 26162 FF EXAM 02/29/2024 484.41 484.41 03/21/2024

30290 PREVEA HEALTH 26285 FF EXAM 03/19/2024 94.70 94.70 03/21/2024

30290 PREVEA HEALTH 26285 CENTER FOR HEALTH AND WE 03/19/2024 1,518.04 1,518.04 03/21/2024

30290 PREVEA HEALTH 26286 CENTER FOR HEALTH AND WE 03/19/2024 925.27 925.27 03/21/2024

Total 30290: 3,022.42 3,022.42

30299

30299 RAY OHERRON CO INC 2328677 HOLSTER & SIGHTS 03/04/2024 161.25 161.25 03/21/2024

30299 RAY OHERRON CO INC 2332314 EQUIPMENT - POLICE 03/21/2024 745.50 745.50 03/28/2024

Total 30299: 906.75 906.75

30313

30313 SK SERVICES 884770 GARBAGE PICK UP 03/08/2024 25.00 25.00 03/14/2024

Total 30313: 25.00 25.00

30335

30335 SHEBOYGAN COUNTY TREASU MUNI COURT  COURT DISBURSEMENT 02/29/2024 399.00 399.00 03/07/2024

Total 30335: 399.00 399.00

30350

30350 STATE OF WI COURT FINES & S MUNI COURT  COURT DISBURSEMENT 02/29/2024 1,378.20 1,378.20 03/07/2024

Total 30350: 1,378.20 1,378.20

30358

30358 TACTICAL SOLUTIONS 10033 RADAR CERT & TUNING FORKS 03/23/2024 246.00 246.00 03/28/2024

Total 30358: 246.00 246.00

30362

30362 TAYLOR READY-MIX 5155 GARAGE BUILDING MAINT 03/08/2024 160.00 160.00 03/21/2024

30362 TAYLOR READY-MIX 58334 STORM SEWER MATERIALS 03/12/2024 777.00 777.00 03/28/2024

Total 30362: 937.00 937.00

30403

30403 WAUKESHA COUNTY TECHNIC S0824696 EDUCATION - POLICE 02/27/2024 520.00 520.00 03/14/2024



CITY OF PLYMOUTH Payment Approval Report - Council Voucher Report City & Utility Page:     9

Report dates: 3/1/2024-3/31/2024 Apr 02, 2024  08:01AM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount Amount Paid Date Paid

Total 30403: 520.00 520.00

30424

30424 WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF  STMT 10-19-20 MANUFACTURING ASSESSMEN 03/05/2024 7,924.90 7,924.90 03/07/2024

Total 30424: 7,924.90 7,924.90

30432

30432 WISCONSIN LIBRARY ASSOCIA 19493 MEMBERSHIP - LIBRARY 03/13/2024 138.68 138.68 03/14/2024

30432 WISCONSIN LIBRARY ASSOCIA 20004 MEMBERSHIP - LIBRARY 03/11/2024 121.46 121.46 03/14/2024

30432 WISCONSIN LIBRARY ASSOCIA 20006 MEMBERSHIP - LIBRARY 03/11/2024 139.79 139.79 03/14/2024

Total 30432: 399.93 399.93

30434

30434 WISCONSIN PUBLIC SERVICE 4938812881 UTILITIES CITY HALL 03/01/2024 2,464.49 2,464.49 03/21/2024

30434 WISCONSIN PUBLIC SERVICE 4938812881 UTILITIES GARAGE 03/01/2024 1,162.85 1,162.85 03/21/2024

30434 WISCONSIN PUBLIC SERVICE 4938812881 UTILITIES GOLF 03/01/2024 17.33 17.33 03/21/2024

30434 WISCONSIN PUBLIC SERVICE 4938812881 UTILITIES LIBRARY 03/01/2024 549.01 549.01 03/21/2024

30434 WISCONSIN PUBLIC SERVICE 4938812881 UTILITIES POOL 03/01/2024 30.58 30.58 03/21/2024

30434 WISCONSIN PUBLIC SERVICE 4938812881 UTILITIES SKI HILL 03/01/2024 47.31 47.31 03/21/2024

30434 WISCONSIN PUBLIC SERVICE 4938812881 UTILITIES YOUTH CENTER 03/01/2024 161.30 161.30 03/21/2024

Total 30434: 4,432.87 4,432.87

30441

30441 WISCONSIN SUPREME COURT STMT 3-13-202 CONTINUING EDUCATION 03/18/2024 800.00 800.00 03/21/2024

Total 30441: 800.00 800.00

30448

30448 WSESI INC 4137 EDUCATION AND DUES - FIRE  12/01/2023 66.66 66.66 03/21/2024

30448 WSESI INC 4137 EDUCATION AND DUES - FIRE T 12/01/2023 33.34 33.34 03/21/2024

Total 30448: 100.00 100.00

30452

30452 YOUR FLEETCARD PROGRAM STMT 3-6-2024 GAS & OIL - FIRE CITY 03/06/2024 815.57 815.57 03/21/2024

30452 YOUR FLEETCARD PROGRAM STMT 3-6-2024 GAS & OIL - FIRE TOWN 03/06/2024 115.01 115.01 03/21/2024

Total 30452: 930.58 930.58

50014

50014 AYRES ASSOCIATES 213877 DAM - ENGINEERING STUDY 03/19/2024 868.19 868.19 03/28/2024

Total 50014: 868.19 868.19

50106

50106 MIDWEST TAPE LLC 505098394 AV - LIBRARY 02/23/2024 26.99 26.99 03/07/2024

50106 MIDWEST TAPE LLC 505128391 DIGITAL CONTENT - LIBRARY 03/01/2024 770.34 770.34 03/07/2024

50106 MIDWEST TAPE LLC 505148551 AV - LIBRARY 03/05/2024 14.99 14.99 03/14/2024

50106 MIDWEST TAPE LLC 505171438 AV - LIBRARY 03/11/2024 197.92 197.92 03/14/2024

50106 MIDWEST TAPE LLC 505230272 AV - LIBRARY 03/22/2024 59.20 59.20 03/28/2024

Total 50106: 1,069.44 1,069.44



CITY OF PLYMOUTH Payment Approval Report - Council Voucher Report City & Utility Page:     10

Report dates: 3/1/2024-3/31/2024 Apr 02, 2024  08:01AM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount Amount Paid Date Paid

50173

50173 WEST COAST NETTING - THE N 34855-IN DRIVING RANGE TRAJECTORY  03/12/2024 4,500.00 4,500.00 03/21/2024

Total 50173: 4,500.00 4,500.00

91507

91507 HAROLDS LANDSCAPING 17569 TOP SOIL 03/13/2024 277.00 277.00 03/21/2024

Total 91507: 277.00 277.00

91561

91561 PACE ANALYTICAL SERVICES I 2440142351 SLUDGE DISPOSAL 02/01/2024 300.00 300.00 03/14/2024

91561 PACE ANALYTICAL SERVICES I 2440143449 LABORATORY 03/04/2024 102.00 102.00 03/14/2024

91561 PACE ANALYTICAL SERVICES I 2440143503 SLUDGE DISPOSAL 03/05/2024 298.00 298.00 03/14/2024

91561 PACE ANALYTICAL SERVICES I 2440143822 PFOS/PFOA MONITORING 03/15/2024 644.00 644.00 03/28/2024

Total 91561: 1,344.00 1,344.00

91886

91886 PLYMOUTH JOINT SCHOOL DIS STMT 3-26-202 MOBILE HOME TAX 03/26/2024 1,994.33 1,994.33 03/28/2024

91886 PLYMOUTH JOINT SCHOOL DIS STMT 3-27-202 MOBILE HOME LOTTERY CRED 03/27/2024 3,951.66 3,951.66 03/28/2024

Total 91886: 5,945.99 5,945.99

92133

92133 ENDURACLEAN INC 15994 CITY HALL JANITORIAL 03/06/2024 242.46 242.46 03/21/2024

92133 ENDURACLEAN INC 16009 BUILDING MAINTENANCE - LIB 03/11/2024 103.91 103.91 03/21/2024

92133 ENDURACLEAN INC 16013 CENTER PULL TOWEL 03/11/2024 263.00 263.00 03/21/2024

92133 ENDURACLEAN INC 16013 TOILET PAPER 03/11/2024 75.08 75.08 03/21/2024

Total 92133: 684.45 684.45

92148

92148 ANSER 6509-032524 ANSWERING SERVICE 03/25/2024 375.00 375.00 03/28/2024

Total 92148: 375.00 375.00

92174

92174 AIRGAS USA LLC 5505997024 BOTTLED GAS CYLINDER RENT 02/29/2024 66.12 66.12 03/28/2024

92174 AIRGAS USA LLC 5505997024 BOTTLED GAS CYLINDER RENT 02/29/2024 77.96 77.96 03/28/2024

92174 AIRGAS USA LLC 9147191784 GARAGE LARGE EQUIPMENT M 02/22/2024 88.42 88.42 03/14/2024

92174 AIRGAS USA LLC 9147192125 GARAGE LARGE EQUIPMENT M 02/22/2024 151.10 151.10 03/14/2024

92174 AIRGAS USA LLC 9147496344 GARAGE LARGE EQUIPMENT M 03/01/2024 233.51 233.51 03/21/2024

Total 92174: 617.11 617.11

92475

92475 J F AHERN CO 633494 CONTRACT - CITY HALL MAINT 02/13/2024 2,430.40 2,430.40 03/14/2024

Total 92475: 2,430.40 2,430.40

92648

92648 VIKING ELECTRIC SUPPLY INC S007836225.0 CITY HALL BUILDING MAINTEN 03/01/2024 530.28 530.28 03/14/2024

Total 92648: 530.28 530.28

92717

92717 VERIZON WIRELESS 9956982569 PHONE - FIRE 02/18/2024 36.01 36.01 03/07/2024



CITY OF PLYMOUTH Payment Approval Report - Council Voucher Report City & Utility Page:     11

Report dates: 3/1/2024-3/31/2024 Apr 02, 2024  08:01AM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount Amount Paid Date Paid

Total 92717: 36.01 36.01

92881

92881 MIDSTAR PRINTING 13483 POWER OUTAGE DOOR HANG 02/22/2024 223.04 223.04 03/07/2024

Total 92881: 223.04 223.04

92957

92957 FRONTIER STMT 2-19-202 PHONE - 911 DIAL LINES 03/13/2024 98.02 98.02 03/14/2024

92957 FRONTIER STMT 2-19-202 PHONE - POLICE 03/13/2024 330.61 330.61 03/14/2024

92957 FRONTIER STMT 2-19-202 PHONE - LIBRARY 03/13/2024 58.82 58.82 03/14/2024

92957 FRONTIER STMT 2-19-202 PHONE - AQUATIC CENTER 03/13/2024 144.04 144.04 03/14/2024

92957 FRONTIER STMT 2-19-202 PHONE - UTILITIES 03/13/2024 284.31 284.31 03/14/2024

92957 FRONTIER STMT 3-19-202 PHONE - POLICE 03/19/2024 330.61 330.61 03/28/2024

92957 FRONTIER STMT 3-19-202 PHONE - AQUATIC CENTER 03/19/2024 144.04 144.04 03/28/2024

92957 FRONTIER STMT 3-19-202 PHONE - LIBRARY 03/19/2024 58.82 58.82 03/28/2024

92957 FRONTIER STMT 3-19-202 PHONE - 911 DIAL LINES 03/19/2024 98.02 98.02 03/28/2024

92957 FRONTIER STMT 3-19-202 PHONE - UTILITIES 03/19/2024 61.43- 61.43- 03/28/2024

92957 FRONTIER STMT032624 MONITORING SERVICE 03/16/2024 208.90 208.90 03/28/2024

Total 92957: 1,694.76 1,694.76

92982

92982 HOPP NEUMANN HUMKE LLP GLS 170 LEGAL SERVICE 03/05/2024 2,967.00 2,967.00 03/21/2024

92982 HOPP NEUMANN HUMKE LLP GLS 170 SUBSTATION SERVICE 03/05/2024 91.00 91.00 03/21/2024

92982 HOPP NEUMANN HUMKE LLP OP LEGAL SERVICE 03/05/2024 640.00 640.00 03/21/2024

92982 HOPP NEUMANN HUMKE LLP Plymouth Utiliti SUBSTATION SERVICE 03/05/2024 88.00 88.00 03/28/2024

Total 92982: 3,786.00 3,786.00

93036

93036 SEERA STMT030624 FOCUS ON ENERGY PAYMENT 03/06/2024 5,441.15 5,441.15 03/07/2024

Total 93036: 5,441.15 5,441.15

93377

93377 SHRED IT USA 8006526355 PAPER SHREDDING SERVICE 03/18/2024 148.40 148.40 03/28/2024

93377 SHRED IT USA DC304 SHREDDING SERVICE 03/04/2024 92.31 92.31 03/14/2024

Total 93377: 240.71 240.71

93432

93432 ADVANCED DISPOSAL SVCS S 0113038-4172- WASTE DISPOSAL SERVICE 03/01/2024 2,443.33 2,443.33 03/14/2024

93432 ADVANCED DISPOSAL SVCS S 0113038-4172- WASTE DISPOSAL SERVICE 03/01/2024 490.23 490.23 03/14/2024

Total 93432: 2,933.56 2,933.56

93665

93665 ITSAVVY LLC 01482797 MICROSOFT OFFICE HOME & B 02/27/2024 239.67 239.67 03/14/2024

93665 ITSAVVY LLC 01482797 HP PROBOOK 450 G10 02/27/2024 878.46 878.46 03/14/2024

Total 93665: 1,118.13 1,118.13

93732

93732 MIDWEST METER INC 0164651-IN 1 1/2" METERS 02/28/2024 16,080.00 16,080.00 03/14/2024

93732 MIDWEST METER INC 0164651-IN 2" TURBO ASSEMBLY 02/28/2024 785.00 785.00 03/14/2024



CITY OF PLYMOUTH Payment Approval Report - Council Voucher Report City & Utility Page:     12

Report dates: 3/1/2024-3/31/2024 Apr 02, 2024  08:01AM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount Amount Paid Date Paid

Total 93732: 16,865.00 16,865.00

93845

93845 HYDRO CORP INC 0076724-IN CROSS CONNECTION PROGRA 02/29/2024 1,083.00 1,083.00 03/14/2024

Total 93845: 1,083.00 1,083.00

93877

93877 INFOSEND INC 258584 BILL MAILING SERVICE 02/29/2024 4,754.28 4,754.28 03/21/2024

Total 93877: 4,754.28 4,754.28

94128

94128 FORSTER ELECTRICAL ENGIN 25153 SUBSTATION #5 02/29/2024 14,412.50 14,412.50 03/14/2024

94128 FORSTER ELECTRICAL ENGIN 25154 SUBSTATION #5 02/29/2024 67.50 67.50 03/14/2024

94128 FORSTER ELECTRICAL ENGIN 25155 SUBSTATION #5 02/29/2024 1,808.75 1,808.75 03/14/2024

94128 FORSTER ELECTRICAL ENGIN 25157 STORAGE SHED CA 02/29/2024 135.00 135.00 03/14/2024

94128 FORSTER ELECTRICAL ENGIN 25182 SYSTEM STUDY 03/04/2024 1,211.25 1,211.25 03/14/2024

Total 94128: 17,635.00 17,635.00

94138

94138 COUNTRY EQUIPMENT SERVIC 21730 EVERGREEN GOLF COURSE E 02/29/2024 459.12 459.12 03/14/2024

Total 94138: 459.12 459.12

94157

94157 MEYER ELECTRIC SERVICE E6068 EXCAVATING ELECTRIC DEPT 03/01/2024 1,550.00 1,550.00 03/14/2024

Total 94157: 1,550.00 1,550.00

94178

94178 HAYDEN WATER COMPANY LLC 161465 LABORATORY SUPPLIES 03/05/2024 196.00 196.00 03/14/2024

Total 94178: 196.00 196.00

94248

94248 BOBCAT OF JANESVILLE 02-273494 TREE CONTROL EQUIP REPAIR  03/01/2024 636.00 636.00 03/14/2024

Total 94248: 636.00 636.00

94333

94333 FISCHERS FLEET SERVICE INC 70887 FLEET VEHICLE  MAINTENANC 02/19/2024 935.25 935.25 03/21/2024

94333 FISCHERS FLEET SERVICE INC 70976 FLEET VEHICLE  MAINTENANC 02/20/2024 649.25 649.25 03/21/2024

94333 FISCHERS FLEET SERVICE INC 70988 FLEET VEHICLE  MAINTENANC 02/22/2024 281.70 281.70 03/21/2024

94333 FISCHERS FLEET SERVICE INC 71003 FLEET VEHICLE  MAINTENANC 02/28/2024 221.52 221.52 03/21/2024

94333 FISCHERS FLEET SERVICE INC 71008 FLEET VEHICLE  MAINTENANC 03/04/2024 208.89 208.89 03/21/2024

Total 94333: 2,296.61 2,296.61

94491

94491 H & R SAFETY SOLUTIONS INC  8534 EVERGREEN GOLF MATERIALS 03/14/2024 100.80 100.80 03/21/2024

94491 H & R SAFETY SOLUTIONS INC  8534 GARAGE OPERATIONAL SUPPL 03/14/2024 162.40 162.40 03/21/2024

Total 94491: 263.20 263.20



CITY OF PLYMOUTH Payment Approval Report - Council Voucher Report City & Utility Page:     13

Report dates: 3/1/2024-3/31/2024 Apr 02, 2024  08:01AM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount Amount Paid Date Paid

94498

94498 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF WI-M 113034-4172-6 CONTRACT - GARBAGE 03/01/2024 27,095.04 27,095.04 03/21/2024

94498 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF WI-M 113034-4172-6 CONTRACT - RECYCLING 03/01/2024 9,878.40 9,878.40 03/21/2024

94498 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF WI-M 113034-4172-6 HOUSING AUTH GARBAGE/REC 03/01/2024 345.00 345.00 03/21/2024

94498 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF WI-M 113034-4172-6 PARKS CLEAN UP 03/01/2024 335.40 335.40 03/21/2024

Total 94498: 37,653.84 37,653.84

94503

94503 AMARIL UNIFORM COMPANY IV257546 ZIPPER REPAIR 02/27/2024 46.35 46.35 03/14/2024

Total 94503: 46.35 46.35

94529

94529 LIFT X LIFT SERVICES LLC 35939 CITY HALL BUILDING MAIN 03/13/2024 190.00 190.00 03/21/2024

Total 94529: 190.00 190.00

94573

94573 DIGICORP INC 350074 SENTINEL ONE EDR SUBSCRIP 03/15/2024 485.00 485.00 03/21/2024

94573 DIGICORP INC 350074 MICROSOFT EXCHANGE ONLIN 03/15/2024 4.00 4.00 03/21/2024

Total 94573: 489.00 489.00

94619

94619 EMMONS BUSINESS INTERIOR 221418 FURNITURE - LIBRARY 03/15/2024 484.39 484.39 03/28/2024

Total 94619: 484.39 484.39

95029

95029 KRIETE TRUCK CENTER LLC X10803664801 GARAGE LARGE EQUIPMENT R 01/05/2024 32.63 32.63 03/14/2024

Total 95029: 32.63 32.63

95125

95125 FALLS ACE HARDWARE 27807 BRUSH 03/14/2024 8.59 8.59 03/21/2024

Total 95125: 8.59 8.59

95160

95160 BRENDA & DENNIS DOHERTY 5881063106A ENERGY STAR INCENTIVE - TV 03/04/2024 25.00 25.00 03/07/2024

Total 95160: 25.00 25.00

95310

95310 WISCONSIN DNR STMT032124 CERTIFICATION RENEWAL 03/21/2024 45.00 45.00 03/21/2024

Total 95310: 45.00 45.00

95430

95430 PRECISION FLOORS & DECOR 23511 GOLF COURSE CAP C 03/08/2024 1,378.15 1,378.15 03/28/2024

Total 95430: 1,378.15 1,378.15

95714

95714 TRANSUNION RISK AND ALTER 1355047-2024 MINIMUM USAGE FEE 03/01/2024 75.00 75.00 03/14/2024



CITY OF PLYMOUTH Payment Approval Report - Council Voucher Report City & Utility Page:     14

Report dates: 3/1/2024-3/31/2024 Apr 02, 2024  08:01AM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount Amount Paid Date Paid

Total 95714: 75.00 75.00

95716

95716 SHAKEDOWN TOOLS LLC 22048 GARAGE HARDWARE AND TOO 03/06/2024 265.79 265.79 03/14/2024

95716 SHAKEDOWN TOOLS LLC 22226 GARAGE HARDWARE AND TOO 03/13/2024 3.95 3.95 03/14/2024

Total 95716: 269.74 269.74

95739

95739 MARK HEMBEL LOAN OAK 8-4 PARK RENTAL REFUND 03/13/2024 120.00 120.00 03/14/2024

Total 95739: 120.00 120.00

95743

95743 ESSENTIAL SEWER & WATER S c-10 p.o.42009 WATER SERVICE LEAK 03/18/2024 3,020.00 3,020.00 03/28/2024

Total 95743: 3,020.00 3,020.00

95778

95778 PLAYAWAY PRODUCTS LLC 455536 AV - LIBRARY 03/11/2024 459.93 459.93 03/14/2024

Total 95778: 459.93 459.93

95881

95881 KWIK TRIP STMT 03/02/20 GAS & OIL 03/02/2024 28.63 28.63 03/21/2024

Total 95881: 28.63 28.63

95899

95899 TERESE SHAW STMT 3-14-202 PETTY CASH - POLICE 03/18/2024 24.15 24.15 03/21/2024

Total 95899: 24.15 24.15

95917

95917 BADGER LABORATORIES INC 24-005204 WATER SAMPLES 03/11/2024 185.00 185.00 03/21/2024

Total 95917: 185.00 185.00

95940

95940 GORDON FLESCH COMPANY IN IN14596154 COPY MACHINE 03/07/2024 186.46 186.46 03/14/2024

Total 95940: 186.46 186.46

95975

95975 RENNERT'S FIRE EQUIPMENT  1952 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE - FIRE 02/23/2024 557.76 557.76 03/07/2024

95975 RENNERT'S FIRE EQUIPMENT  1990 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE - FIRE 03/08/2024 339.50 339.50 03/21/2024

Total 95975: 897.26 897.26

96034

96034 BADGER ENVIRONMENTAL SE 960b CITY HALL BUILDING MAIN 03/08/2024 1,700.00 1,700.00 03/21/2024

Total 96034: 1,700.00 1,700.00

96100

96100 MPOWER TECHNOLOGIES INC 5615 MPOWER OUTAGE MANAGEME 02/28/2024 8,750.00 8,750.00 03/14/2024

96100 MPOWER TECHNOLOGIES INC 5615 OMS ANNUAL MAINTENANCE 02/28/2024 1,750.00 1,750.00 03/14/2024



CITY OF PLYMOUTH Payment Approval Report - Council Voucher Report City & Utility Page:     15

Report dates: 3/1/2024-3/31/2024 Apr 02, 2024  08:01AM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount Amount Paid Date Paid

96100 MPOWER TECHNOLOGIES INC 5641 ANNUAL SOFTWARE MAINTEN 03/07/2024 3,200.00 3,200.00 03/21/2024

Total 96100: 13,700.00 13,700.00

96151

96151 BRUGGINK'S INC 1-539925 STREET REPAIR OPERATING S 03/15/2024 1,355.00 1,355.00 03/28/2024

96151 BRUGGINK'S INC 1-539925 PARKS CONTRACTOR 03/15/2024 1,355.00 1,355.00 03/28/2024

Total 96151: 2,710.00 2,710.00

96160

96160 LAWSON PRODUCTS INC 9311337330 EVERGREEN GOLF COURSE E 02/28/2024 256.80 256.80 03/14/2024

96160 LAWSON PRODUCTS INC 9311341334 EVERGREEN GOLF COURSE E 02/29/2024 115.00 115.00 03/07/2024

96160 LAWSON PRODUCTS INC 9311341334 - A EVERGREEN GOLF COURSE E 02/29/2024 .50 .50 03/14/2024

96160 LAWSON PRODUCTS INC 9311360014 GARAGE LARGE EQUIPMENT R 03/07/2024 73.12 73.12 03/14/2024

96160 LAWSON PRODUCTS INC 9311371697 GARAGE SMALL EQUIPMENT R 03/12/2024 122.59 122.59 03/28/2024

Total 96160: 568.01 568.01

96193

96193 WAYNE CONSULTANTS & MFG  31045 CITY HALL BUILDING MAINT 02/24/2024 408.00 408.00 03/14/2024

Total 96193: 408.00 408.00

96197

96197 MEAD & HUNT 363755 DIGESTER ROOF - ENGINEERI 03/14/2024 2,370.00 2,370.00 03/28/2024

Total 96197: 2,370.00 2,370.00

96235

96235 PLYMOUTH CHEESE COUNTER  STMT031924 2023 CHEESE COUNTER CONT 03/19/2024 7,500.00 7,500.00 03/21/2024

Total 96235: 7,500.00 7,500.00

96236

96236 VETTING CUSTOMS 8317 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE - FIRE 03/05/2024 4,412.91 4,412.91 03/07/2024

96236 VETTING CUSTOMS 8427 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE - FIRE 03/07/2024 1,024.62 1,024.62 03/21/2024

Total 96236: 5,437.53 5,437.53

96240

96240 CRETEX SPECIALTY PRODUCT 42866 STORM SEWER MATERIALS 03/08/2024 720.00 720.00 03/21/2024

96240 CRETEX SPECIALTY PRODUCT STMT 3-1-2024 STORM SEWER MATERIALS 03/01/2024 4,042.61 4,042.61 03/14/2024

Total 96240: 4,762.61 4,762.61

96282

96282 AED BRANDS 160767 CHARGE PAK/ELECTRODES 03/15/2024 323.00 323.00 03/28/2024

Total 96282: 323.00 323.00

96311

96311 AGGRECON LTD 42839 3/4" ROAD GRAVEL 01/20/2024 65.51 65.51 03/14/2024

Total 96311: 65.51 65.51

96312

96312 LOCHEN EQUIPMENT 002-0 QUOTE  PARKS EQUIPMENT REPAIR &  03/14/2024 868.49 868.49 03/21/2024



CITY OF PLYMOUTH Payment Approval Report - Council Voucher Report City & Utility Page:     16

Report dates: 3/1/2024-3/31/2024 Apr 02, 2024  08:01AM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount Amount Paid Date Paid

Total 96312: 868.49 868.49

96329

96329 CREXENDO 157872 PHONE - LIBRARY 03/01/2024 227.95 227.95 03/07/2024

Total 96329: 227.95 227.95

96362

96362 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS 6583-104144 AIR FILTER 02/14/2024 34.49 34.49 03/21/2024

96362 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS 6583-106152 TOOL 03/14/2024 25.97 25.97 03/21/2024

96362 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS 6583-106526 GARAGE SMALL EQUIPMENT R 03/19/2024 36.36 36.36 03/21/2024

96362 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS Customer 3427 TRANS # 6583104943 02/28/2024 5.49 5.49 03/21/2024

Total 96362: 102.31 102.31

96373

96373 RWW RESTORATION LLC 9515 RESTORE FIBERGLASS HOTAR 03/11/2024 1,079.20 1,079.20 03/21/2024

Total 96373: 1,079.20 1,079.20

96383

96383 MEYER YAMAHA 29023 EVERGREEN GOLF EQUIPMEN 02/28/2024 154.92 154.92 03/07/2024

Total 96383: 154.92 154.92

96384

96384 MARTENS-TRILLING TRUE VAL B1365984 PARKS EQUIPMENT REPAIR &  02/29/2024 164.44 164.44 03/07/2024

Total 96384: 164.44 164.44

96385

96385 BOB LOEHR STMT 3-1-2024 PARKS MATERIALS 03/01/2024 200.00 200.00 03/07/2024

Total 96385: 200.00 200.00

96386

96386 STEVE UGORETZ 16882475201 ENERGY STAR INCENTIVE - R 03/04/2024 25.00 25.00 03/07/2024

Total 96386: 25.00 25.00

96387

96387 GERALD SCHULTZ 11871435208 ENERGY STAR INCENTIVE - R/ 03/04/2024 90.00 90.00 03/07/2024

Total 96387: 90.00 90.00

96388

96388 JUDITH SCRIBNER 11872334108 REFUND OVERPAYMENT 03/12/2024 153.00 153.00 03/14/2024

96388 JUDITH SCRIBNER 11872334108 REFUND OVERDRAFT FEE 03/12/2024 15.00 15.00 03/14/2024

Total 96388: 168.00 168.00

96389

96389 FASTSIGNS SHEBOYGAN 2444-1020 STREET SIGNS & MARKINGS M 02/28/2024 243.80 243.80 03/21/2024

Total 96389: 243.80 243.80



CITY OF PLYMOUTH Payment Approval Report - Council Voucher Report City & Utility Page:     17

Report dates: 3/1/2024-3/31/2024 Apr 02, 2024  08:01AM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount Amount Paid Date Paid

96390

96390 BRIAN SCHWIND TRUCKING 21885024101 REFUND OVERPAYMENT 03/19/2024 165.92 165.92 03/21/2024

Total 96390: 165.92 165.92

Grand Totals: 311,521.08 310,679.75

CITY OF PLYMOUTH- PLYMOUTH UTILITIES

The above listed checks and ACH is in payment of the Utilities' accounts and are hereby approved with the following exceptions:   

Exceptions:             

______________________________________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________________________________

THE FINANCE COMMITTEE

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Dated: ______________________________________________________



CITY OF PLYMOUTH Payment Approval Report - Council Voucher Report City & Utility Page:     18

Report dates: 3/1/2024-3/31/2024 Apr 02, 2024  08:01AM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount Amount Paid Date Paid

Report Criteria:

Detail report.

Invoices with totals above $0 included.

Paid and unpaid invoices included.

Invoice Detail.GL account = "0100100001000"-"2200567002200","2400111000000"-"8000232000000"



 

 
 
 
 
 

MEETING AGENDA 
 

FINANCE & PERSONNEL COMMITTEE OF THE 
PLYMOUTH COMMON COUNCIL 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
128 SMITH STREET 

CITY OF PLYMOUTH, WISCONSIN 
 
 
 

1. Call to order and roll call: Finance & Personnel Committee Chair Nelson called the 
meeting to order at 6:30 PM. On call of the roll, the following members were present: 
Mayor Pohlman, John Nelson, Jeff Tauscheck, Greg Hildebrand, and Mike Penkwitz. 
Also present were: Alder. Angie Matzdorf, Alder. Diane Gilson, Alder. Bob Schilsky, 
Police Chief Ken Ruggles, Deputy Police Chief Matt Starker, and Clerk/Deputy Treasurer 
Anna Voigt. 

 
2. Approval of meeting minutes for February 26, 2024 meeting: Motion was made by 

Hildebrand/Penkwitz to approve the minutes for February 26. A unanimous aye vote was 
cast. Motion carried. 

 
3. Discussion on Possible Additional K9 Unit: Police Chief Ruggles explained the Police 

Department recently tendered a conditional offer of employment to Dylan Lindsley, a 
deputy with Taylor County Sheriff’s Office. Mr. Lindsley accepted the City of Plymouth 
Police Department’s offer and has tendered his resignation to the Sheriff’s Department. 
Mr. Lindsley was Taylor County’s K-9 handler. The Sheriff’s Department reached out to 
Plymouth asking if they would be interested in purchasing the K-9 to go with Mr. Lindsley. 
Mr. Lindsley is the second handler for this K-9 and they are concerned the dog may not 
be able to adapt to a third handler. Tauscheck stated he thought it was a good 
opportunity.  It’s hard to find handlers. He mentioned the presence of a dog helps people 
comply quicker. Hildebrand asked if there was a way to track every time the K-9 was 
used even in small instances, like where people comply quicker. The consensus of the 
committee was to move forward with the second K-9. 

 
4. Adjournment: Motion was made by Pohlman/Tauscheck to adjourn the meeting. A 

unanimous aye vote was cast. Motion carried. 



 

 
PLYMOUTH PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

MEETING MINUTES 
February 5, 2024 

 
Meeting was called to order by K. Murray at 6:30 pm.  Present were: S. 
Britt, S. Gloede, A. Matzdorf, B. McKnight, M. Hummitzsch, K. Murray, P. 
Norlander and M. Kaczkowski. Also present: Library Director L. Jochman 
 
There was a letter from the Parkview PTO about the Fun Fair Silent 
Auction. 
 
Motion by B. McKnight, second by S. Britt to approve the minutes of the 
January 8, 2024 meeting. Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Motion by P. Norlander, second by S. Britt to approve the financial report 
for Final Expenses in 2023 and January 2024.  Motion passed 
unanimously.  
 
S. Gloede joined the meeting.  
 
Director L. Jochman reviewed some highlighted items on her monthly 
report. This included snow days and software upgrade information. 
 
Old Business 
 
Director L. Jochman and President K. Murray updated the Board on the 
meeting with the ad hoc committee of members from the Library Board and 
the Library Foundation. The small committee agreed to language for the 
new Foundation By-Laws and started work on a Memorandum of 
Understanding. 
 
Director L. Jochman presented the 2023 Annual Report to the board. M. 
Hummitzsh pointed out a misspelling of her last name. Motion by S. Britt to 
approve the Annual Report with the updated spelling, second by M. 
Kaczkowski. Motion passed unanimously. 



 

 
 
New Business 
 
The board discussed three quotes received for the Space Needs Analysis. 
Discussion centered upon the firms’ previous projects and experience as 
well as cost. Motion by B. McKnight to award the Space Needs Analysis 
Project to FEH Design, second by M. Hummitzsch. Motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
Announcements 
 
M. Hummitszch will not be able to attend the March meeting due to a 
Forensics tournament. 
 
Motion by S. Gloede, second by P. Norlander to adjourn.  Motion passed.  
Meeting was adjourned at 7:15 pm. 
 
 

Submitted by, Leslie Jochman 
Library Board Secretary 

 



 

 
PLYMOUTH PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

MEETING MINUTES 
March 11, 2024 

 
Meeting was called to order by K. Murray at 6:31 pm.  Present were: S. 
Britt, S. Gloede, A. Matzdorf, B. McKnight, K. Murray and M. Kaczkowski. 
Absent were: M. Hummitzsch and P. Norlander. Also present: Library 
Director L. Jochman, C. Henson, FEH Design, K. Eipperle, FEH Design, B. 
Ludvik, FEH Design, M. Taylor, FEH Design, J. Hughes, Library 
Foundation, and M. Rosche, Library Foundation. 
 
Motion by S. Britt, second by M. Kaczkowski to approve the minutes of the 
February 5, 2024 meeting. Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Motion by B. McKnight, second by A. Matzdorf to approve the financial 
report for February 2024.  Motion passed unanimously.  
 
Motion by S. Gloede, second by S. Britt to move the Space Analysis kickoff 
to be the next item discussed. Motion passed unanimously. 
 
The FEH Design team explained the next steps in the Space Analysis 
process. K. Eipperle detailed the timeline of events and explained the 
public-driven design process. K. Eipperle led those present in drafting the 
Goals for Success. 
 
C. Henson, FEH Design, K. Eipperle, FEH Design, B. Ludvik, FEH Design, 
M. Taylor, FEH Design, J. Hughes, Library Foundation, and M. Rosche, 
Library Foundation left the meeting. 
 
Director L. Jochman reviewed some highlighted items on her monthly 
report. This included some donations and library marketing. 
 
Old Business 
 



 

Director L. Jochman and President K. Murray updated the Board on the 
meeting with the Library Foundation on February 27. Expectations of the 
foundation were discussed. 
 
New Business 
 
Director Jochman proposed changing the fees for faxes to reduce and 
simplify the charges now that the library is using VOIP for fax and phone 
service. Motion by S. Britt to approve the new fax fee amount, second by S. 
Gloede. Motion Passed. 
 
Announcements 
 
There were no announcements. 
 
Motion by B, McKnight, second by A. Matzdorf to adjourn.  Motion passed.  
Meeting was adjourned at 8:29 pm. 
 
 

Submitted by, Leslie Jochman 
Library Board Secretary 

 



Plymouth Community Television 
Board Mee�ng 03/11/2024 

 
 
 
 

 Checking:    410.58 
Unrestricted: 2,524.13 
Restricted: 9,100.44 
 
 
 
Atendance: Kurt Zolp, Mike Penkwitz, Virginia Stemper, Gary Kaiser, Mike Briggs, and Konrad 
Kaczkowski 
 
Gary reported that City Hall equipment for Council mee�ngs is now in place. He requested that 
a new camera and associated equipment was need for the upcoming stock races and other 
events at a cost of $3,000.00 be purchased. Board approved the purchase. He also reported that 
all City Council mee�ngs are broadcasted “Live” on YouTube and archived and played later 
Channel 14. Mike Penkwitz said he would remind Council members that mee�ngs are aired live 
on YouTube. 
 
Mike reported all boys and girls home basketball games were televised live on YouTube, 
archived, and aired later channel 20. This year was a record year as there were 26 games 
televised. He stated that this will be the norm in the future. 
 
School Board mee�ng March 19th. There will be no Ac�on-14 for March. There will be a 
Veteran-to-Veteran show, with taping on march 19th 2024 
 
 
 
 

Next Board Mee�ng Monday April 8th, 2024 5:00 PM at the High School 
 
 
 
 

Respec�ully Submited 
 
Konrad Kaczkowski 
 



Plymouth Community TV Cash Flow Year: 2024

Summary Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec TOTAL
Opening Balance 749.35 486.61 354.93 493.61 493.61 493.61 493.61 493.61 493.61 493.61 493.61 493.61
Total Reciepts 5,000.00 3,700.00 5,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 14,200.00$       
Total Disbursements 5,262.74 3,831.68 5,361.32 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 14,455.74$       
Total Cash Flow -262.74 -131.68 138.68 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Ending Balance 486.61$       354.93$       493.61$       493.61$       493.61$      493.61$      493.61$      493.61$      493.61$      493.61$      493.61$      493.61$             493.61$            

Receipt
Restricted 5,000.00 3,700.00 4,500.00 13,200.00$       
Unrestricted 1,000.00 1,000.00$         
Ads & Tape Sales -$                  
Other -$                  
TOTAL 5,000.00$    3,700.00$    5,500.00$    -$             -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$                   14,200.00$       

Disbursements

Wages / Salaries/ Benefits 3,040.64 2,730.75 4,196.07 9,967.46$         
Telephone 130.99 131.36 131.36 393.71$            
Dues -$                  
Card Member Services 697.89 216.85 12.99 927.73$            
Action - 14 40.00 40.00$              
Work Comp Insurnace -$                  
Supplies 30.00 30.00$              
P.O.Box Rental 118.00 118.00$            
Postage -$                  
State With Holding 309.38 309.38$            
FUTA 157.68 157.68$            
Unemployment Insurance 6.16 6.16$                
941 Tax 752.00 672.72 700.90 2,125.62$         
Equipment -$                  
Miscellanous 230.00 230.00$            
Mileage 50.00 50.00 50.00 150.00$            
Business Tax Registration -$                  

Wi Corp. Filing -$                  
Closed Caption Exemption -$                  
941 Quarterly Taxes
Cooking Show

-$                  



TOTAL 5,262.74$    3,831.68$    5,361.32$    -$             -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$                   14,455.74$       



















 

 
 
 
City of Plymouth 
128 Smith St. - P.O. Box 107 
Plymouth, WI  53073-0107 
  
 

 
  
 

 
 
 

Telephone: (920) 893-3745 
Facsimile: (920) 893-0183 

     Web Site:        plymouthgov.com 
 
 

 
DATE:  April 9, 2024 

TO:  Mayor and Common Council 
 
FROM: Anna Voigt, City Clerk  
 
RE: Approve Application for a “Class B” Reserve Liquor License and Class “B” Beer 

License for Big Billy’s Family LLC, at 437 E Mill St. 
 
 
 
Background: The LLC that Big Billy’s operated under, 437 E Mill St LLC, is no longer active. 
They have established a new LLC, Big Billy’s Family LLC, but because a Reserve Class B Liquor 
License cannot be transferred per the DOR, the new LLC has to apply and pay for a new Reserve 
Class B Liquor License. The new Reserve License will keep the City’s available amount of 
Reserve Licenses at the status quo. Reserve Class B Liquor License fee will be transferred to the 
RDA per prior Council policy.  
 
Staff Recommendation: Approve Application of a Reserve “Class B” Liquor License for Big 
Billy’s Family LLC. 
 































































 
CITY OF PLYMOUTH 

PROCLAMATION 

 
 
WHEREAS,  Support of the arts in society is one of the most vital 

contributions that one can make; and 
   
WHEREAS,   L. Ron Hubbard stated, “A culture is only as great as its 

dreams, and its dreams are dreamed by artists”; and 
 
 WHEREAS,   Mr. Hubbard founded the Writers of the Future Contest 

in 1983 to initiate “a means for new and budding writers 
to have a chance for their creative efforts to be seen and 
acknowledged”; and 

 
WHEREAS,  The Illustrators of the Future Contest was created five 

years later to provide the same opportunity for artists; 
and 

 
WHEREAS,   During the past forty years, the Writers and Illustrators of 

the Future Contests have discovered and published 
nearly 1,000 novice authors and artists; and 

 
WHEREAS,   L. Ron Hubbard’s Contests – now celebrating four 

decades of helping new writers and artists – has further 
assisted thousands more in achieving their dreams; and   

     
WHEREAS,   The Contests and associated programs provide an 

enduring gift to the field of speculative fiction.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, DONALD O. POHLMAN, MAYOR of the City of 
Plymouth, do hereby proclaim April 21, to April 27, 2024 as 
 

L. RON HUBBARD’S WRITERS OF THE FUTURE WEEK 
  
I urge all citizens to congratulate and recognize L. Ron Hubbard’s Writers 
and Illustrators of the Future Contest, which support and encourage 
writers and artists in our community, and around the world, to pursue 
their dreams to the benefit of all. 
 
DATED  this 9th day of April 2024 
 
 
 
                  ___________________________________ 
       Donald O. Pohlman, Mayor 
        City of Plymouth 
         



 
CITY OF PLYMOUTH 

PROCLAMATION 

 
 
WHEREAS,  in 1872, J. Sterling Morton proposed to the Nebraska 

Board of Agriculture that a special day be set aside for the 
planting of trees, and; 

   
WHEREAS,   this holiday, called Arbor Day, was first observed with 

the planting of more than a million trees in Nebraska, 
and; 

 
 WHEREAS,   Arbor Day is now observed throughout the nation and 

the world, and; 
 
WHEREAS,  trees can be a solution to combating climate change by 

reducing the erosion of our precious topsoil by wind and 
water, cutting heating and cooling costs, moderating the 
temperature, cleaning the air, producing life-giving 
oxygen, and providing habitat for wildlife, and; 

 
WHEREAS,   trees are a renewable resource giving us paper, wood for 

our homes, fuel for our fires and countless other wood 
products and; 

 
WHEREAS,   trees in our city increase property values, enhance the 

economic vitality of business areas, and beautify our 
community, and     

     
WHEREAS,   trees – wherever they are planted – are a source of joy and 

spiritual renewal.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, DONALD O. POHLMAN, MAYOR of the City of 
Plymouth, do hereby proclaim April 26, 2024 as 
 

ARBOR DAY 
  
In the City of Plymouth, and I urge all citizens to support efforts to care for 
our trees and woodlands and to support our city’s community forestry 
program, and 
 
FURTHER, I urge all citizens to plant trees to gladden the hearts and  
   promote the well being of present and future generations. 
 
DATED  this 9th day of April 2024 
 
 
 
                  ___________________________________ 
       Donald O. Pohlman, Mayor 
        City of Plymouth 
         



 
CITY OF PLYMOUTH 

PROCLAMATION 

 
 
WHEREAS,  libraries offer the opportunity for everyone to connect with 

others, learn new skills, and pursue their passions, no matter 
where they are on life’s journey, and; 

   
WHEREAS,   libraries have long served as trusted institutions, striving to 

ensure equitable access to information and services for all 
members of the community regardless of race, ethnicity, 
creed, ability, sexual orientation, gender identity, or 
socioeconomic status, and; 

 
 WHEREAS,   libraries adapt to the ever-changing needs of their 

communities, developing and expanding collections, 
programs, and services that are as diverse as the populations 
they serve, and; 

 
WHEREAS,  libraries are accessible and inclusive places that promote a 

sense of local connection, advancing understanding, civic 
engagement, and shared community goals, and; 

 
WHEREAS,   libraries play a pivotal role in economic development by 

providing resources and support for job seekers, 
entrepreneurs, and small businesses, thus contributing to local 
prosperity and growth and; 

 
WHEREAS,   libraries make choices that are good for the environment and 

make sense economically, creating thriving communities for a 
better tomorrow, and;     

     
WHEREAS,   libraries are treasured institutions that preserve our collective 

heritage and knowledge, safeguarding both physical and 
digital resources for present and future generations, and; 

 
WHEREAS, libraries are an essential public good and fundamental 

institutions in democratic societies, working to improve 
society, protect the right to education and literacy, and 
promote the free exchange of information and ideas for all, 
and; 

 
WHEREAS, libraries, librarians, and library workers are joining library 

supporters and advocates across the nation to celebrate 
National Library Week; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, DONALD O. POHLMAN, MAYOR proclaim National 
Library Week, April 7-13, 2024. During this week, I encourage all residents to 
visit their library and celebrate the adventures and opportunities they unlock for 
us every day. Ready, Set, Library! 
 
DATED  this 9th day of April 2024 
 
 
                  ___________________________________ 
       Donald O. Pohlman, Mayor 
        City of Plymouth 



 

 
 
 
City of Plymouth 
128 Smith St. - P.O. Box 107 
Plymouth, WI  53073-0107 
  
 

 
  
 

 
 
 

Telephone: (920) 893-3745 
Facsimile: (920) 893-0183 

     Web Site:        plymouthgov.com 
 
 

 
DATE:  April 9, 2024 

TO:  Mayor and Common Council 
 
FROM: Tim Blakeslee, City Administrator/Utilities Manager 
 
RE: Resolution No. 3 Approving the City of Plymouth Adjusted US Census Bureau 

Urban Area Boundary 
 
 
 
Background:  Urban Areas are defined by the US Census as individual municipalities or groups 
of nearby municipalities with a total population of 5,000 or higher. The Urban Area Boundary 
(UAB) is important because the location of the boundary affects roadway eligibility for federal 
Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG) funding. WisDOT’s funding program for federal STBG 
funding is the State Transportation Program (STP). It divides STBG funds into STP-Urban and 
STP-Rural. The UAB is also a factor for Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) Highway 
Performance Monitoring System (HPMS) reporting. Areas within the UAB are considered to be 
Urban. All functionally classified, non-local roads within an urban area are eligible for STPUrban 
funding. Areas outside the UAB are considered to be Rural. Functionally classified roads (Major 
Collectors and higher) outside the UAB are eligible for STP-Rural funding. When a rural county 
highway continues across the UAB into an urban area; that urban portion is eligible for 
STBG/STP-Urban rather than STBG/STP-Rural funding. Approval process is different for urban 
and rural areas.  
 
The City must update the Urban Area Boundary every 10 years. City Staff worked with WisDOT 
and Bay Lakes to update the Urban Area Boundary as attached. Approval for changes in an urban 
area must be approved by the Common Council via resolution.  
 
Staff Recommendation: Resolution No. 3 Approving the City of Plymouth Adjusted US Census 
Bureau Urban Area Boundary 
 
Attachments: 

1. Resolution No. 3 
2. Adjusted Urban Area Boundary 

 
 



 
 

City of Plymouth 
Resolu�on Number 3 

APPROVING the City of Plymouth Adjusted Urban Area Boundary 
 
 
WHEREAS every ten years, the US Census Bureau defines the boundaries for geographic areas mee�ng 
the urban area criteria as published in the Federal Register; and 
 
WHEREAS the Federal Highway Administra�on allows states to adjust the Census-defined urban area 
boundaries for planning and funding purposes; and 
 
WHEREAS the Wisconsin Department of Transporta�on, following the release of decennial census data, 
leads a process to adjust Census-defined Urban Area Boundaries (UABs) within the state, in conjunc�on 
with the respec�ve state office of the Federal Highway Administra�on; and 
 
WHEREAS a�er review by local officials the Wisconsin Department of Transporta�on, and the Federal 
Highway Administra�on, the proposed adjusted Urban Area Boundary has been found to be jus�fied; 
and 
 
WHEREAS the Wisconsin Department of Transporta�on will submit the proposed adjusted urban area 
boundary to the respec�ve FHWA division office; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that City of Plymouth informs the Wisconsin Department of 
Transportation that the Adjusted Urban Area Boundary as reflected in the attached map is hereby 
approved and adopted. 
 
Adopted this 4-9-24 
 
 
APPROVED:       ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_______________________________________    __________________________________ 
Don Pohlman       Anna Voight 
Mayor       City Clerk     
 



!(67

!(67

!(67

!(57

!(57

!(57

!(57

!(28

!(23
!(23 !(23

!(23

!(67

!(67

")Z

")C

")C

")O

")A

")E

")PP
")PP

")JM

")CJ

")E

")M

")M

")M

")U

")O

")C

")E

")E

")N

")J

")M

")OJ

")U
")U

")J
")J

Elkhart
Lake

Plymouth

Plymouth Urban Area

Adjusted Urban Area Boundary
Current City & Village Boundaries

Population (2020): 9,011
Housing Units: 4,281
Map Date: 3/7/2024

0 0.5 1 1.50.25
Miles

K

(Adjusted Urban Area Boundary)



 
     
 
 
DATE:  April 9, 2024 
 
TO:  Mayor and Common Council 
 
FROM: Chris Russo, Finance Director 
 
RE: Discussion/action regarding Resolution Authorizing the Partial Redemption of the City's 

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A, dated September 19, 2013; General 
Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2015A, dated June 3, 2015; and General Obligation 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2016A, dated May 18, 2016 

 
     
 
Background: 
In 2024, TID 4 will be able to meet its fiscal obligations and will be able to close. On September 26, 
2023, Council approved Resolution No. 14 for the TID 4 affordable housing extension. This extension 
allows the 2025 TID 4 tax increment collected to be used to promote affordable housing. In order to 
complete the close of TID 4 in 2024 and set up the 2025 affordable housing extension, all project costs 
must be paid off. Currently TID 4 has outstanding 2013A GO (General Obligation), 2015A GO, and 
2016A GO bonds, with final payments scheduled in late 2024 and 2025. To pay this debt off early in 
2024, a refunding resolution (cash call) must be approved. With the help of Ehlers, the final payment of 
these bonds will be scheduled for May 16, 2024, in the amounts listed below. 
 
 
 2013A GO 2015A GO 2016A GO 

Refunded Bonds  $  210,000.00   $  655,000.00   $       500,000.00  
Refunded Interest  $          262.50   $          648.18   $            1,250.00  

Total Debt Service to Call  $  210,262.50   $  655,648.18   $       501,250.00  
 Total May 16, 2024 Payment  $    1,367,160.68  

 
 
 
Recommendation:  
Move to approve resolution no. 4 Discussion/action regarding Resolution Authorizing the Partial 
Redemption of the City's General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A, dated September 19, 2013; 
General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2015A, dated June 3, 2015; and General Obligation 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2016A, dated May 18, 2016 
 
Attachments: 

1. Debt Payment Details 
2. Resolution No. 4 

 
 

Plymouth Utilities 
900 CTH PP - P.O. Box 277 
Plymouth, WI  53073-0277 
 

Telephone:    920-893-1471 
Facsimile:     920-892-2760 
www.PlymouthUtilities.com 
plymouthutilities@plymouthutilities.com 
 
 
 

http://www.plymouthutilities.com/


 

City of Plymouth, WI 
2024 Cash Call 2013A
TID 4 
Call Date:  May 16, 2024

Debt Service To Maturity And To Call 

Date
Refunded 

Bonds
Refunded 

Interest D/S To Call Principal Coupon Interest
Refunded 

D/S

05/05/2024 - - - - - - -
05/16/2024 210,000.00 262.50 210,262.50 - - - -
11/01/2024 - - - - - 3,150.00 3,150.00
05/01/2025 - - - 210,000.00 3.000% 3,150.00 213,150.00

Total $210,000.00 $262.50 $210,262.50 $210,000.00 - $6,300.00 $216,300.00

Yield Statistics 
 
Base date for Avg. Life & Avg. Coupon Calculation 5/05/2024
Average Life 0.989 Years
Average Coupon 3.0000000%
Weighted Average Maturity (Par Basis) 0.989 Years
Weighted Average Maturity (Original Price Basis) 0.989 Years
 
Refunding Bond Information 
 
Refunding Dated Date 5/05/2024
Refunding Delivery Date 5/05/2024

13 $3200m GO Ref Bonds FI  |  TID 4  |  4/ 2/2024  |  9:19 AM  

  Page 1



 

City of Plymouth, WI 
2024 Cash Call 2015A
TID 4 
Call Date:  May 16, 2024

Debt Service To Maturity And To Call 

Date
Refunded 

Bonds
Refunded 

Interest D/S To Call Principal Coupon Interest
Refunded 

D/S

05/05/2024 - - - - - - -
05/16/2024 655,000.00 648.18 655,648.18 - - - -
11/01/2024 - - - - - 7,778.13 7,778.13
05/01/2025 - - - 655,000.00 2.375% 7,778.13 662,778.13

Total $655,000.00 $648.18 $655,648.18 $655,000.00 - $15,556.26 $670,556.26

Yield Statistics 
 
Base date for Avg. Life & Avg. Coupon Calculation 5/05/2024
Average Life 0.989 Years
Average Coupon 2.3750011%
Weighted Average Maturity (Par Basis) 0.989 Years
Weighted Average Maturity (Original Price Basis) 0.989 Years
 
Refunding Bond Information 
 
Refunding Dated Date 5/05/2024
Refunding Delivery Date 5/05/2024

15 $7615m GO Ref Bonds FI  |  TID 4  |  4/ 2/2024  |  9:19 AM  

  Page 2



 

City of Plymouth, WI 
2024 Cash Call 2016A
TID 4 
Call Date:  May 16, 2024

Debt Service To Maturity And To Call 

Date
Refunded 

Bonds
Refunded 

Interest D/S To Call Principal Coupon Interest
Refunded 

D/S

05/05/2024 - - - - - - -
05/16/2024 500,000.00 1,250.00 501,250.00 - - - -
10/01/2024 - - - - - 5,000.00 5,000.00
04/01/2025 - - - 500,000.00 2.000% 5,000.00 505,000.00

Total $500,000.00 $1,250.00 $501,250.00 $500,000.00 - $10,000.00 $510,000.00

Yield Statistics 
 
Base date for Avg. Life & Avg. Coupon Calculation 5/05/2024
Average Life 0.906 Years
Average Coupon 2.0000010%
Weighted Average Maturity (Par Basis) 0.906 Years
Weighted Average Maturity (Original Price Basis) 0.906 Years
 
Refunding Bond Information 
 
Refunding Dated Date 5/05/2024
Refunding Delivery Date 5/05/2024

16A$5845GO REf Bds 08 spl  |  AR 2006 GO Bonds TID 4  |  4/ 2/2024  |  9:19 AM  

  Page 3



QB\89269177.1 
 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 4 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PARTIAL REDEMPTION OF  
THE CITY'S GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2013A, DATED 

SEPTEMBER 19, 2013; GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2015A, 
DATED JUNE 3, 2015; AND GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016A, 

DATED MAY 18, 2016 

WHEREAS, the City of Plymouth, Sheboygan County, Wisconsin (the "City") has outstanding 
its General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A, dated September 19, 2013 (the "2013A 
Bonds"); General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2015A, dated June 3, 2015 (the "2015A 
Bonds"); and General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016A, dated May 18, 2016 (the "2016A 
Bonds"); 

WHEREAS, the Common Council has determined that it is necessary and desirable to redeem a 
$210,000 portion of the 2025 maturity of the 2013A Bonds, a $655,000 portion of the 2025 maturity of 
the 2015A Bonds and a $500,000 portion of the 2025 maturity of the 2016A Bonds (collectively, the 
"Refunded Obligations") on May 16, 2024 with funds of the City on hand; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City, that the 
Refunded Obligations are called for prior payment on May 16, 2024 at the price of par plus accrued 
interest to the date of redemption. 

The City hereby directs the City Clerk to work with Ehlers & Associates, Inc. to cause timely 
notice of redemption of the Refunded Obligations, in substantially the forms attached hereto as 
Exhibits A-1, A-2 and A-3 and incorporated herein by this reference (collectively, the "Notices"), to be 
provided at the times, to the parties and in the manner set forth on the Notices.  Further, the City Clerk 
shall cause the funds necessary to redeem the Refunded Obligations to be provided to The Depository 
Trust Company. 

Adopted, approved and recorded April 9, 2024. 

 

_____________________________ 
Donald O. Pohlman 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 
Anna Voigt 
City Clerk (SEAL)  



QB\89269177.1 
 

 

 

EXHIBIT A-1 

NOTICE OF PARTIAL CALL* 

Regarding 

CITY OF PLYMOUTH 
SHEBOYGAN COUNTY, WISCONSIN 

GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2013A 
DATED SEPTEMBER 19, 2013 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Bonds of the above-referenced issue which 
mature on the date and in the amount; bear interest at the rate; and have a CUSIP No. as set forth 
below have been called by the City for prior payment on May 16, 2024 at a redemption price 
equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest to the date of prepayment: 

Maturity Date Principal Amount Interest Rate CUSIP No. 
05/01/2025 $210,000** 3.00% 730111KT7 

 
The City shall deposit federal or other immediately available funds sufficient for such 
redemption at the office of The Depository Trust Company on or before May 16, 2024. 

Said Bonds will cease to bear interest on May 16, 2024. 

By Order of the 
Common Council 
City of Plymouth 
City Clerk 

Dated ________________________ 
_____________ 

* To be provided by registered or certified mail, overnight express delivery, facsimile transmission, electronic 
transmission or in any other manner required by The Depository Trust Company, to The Depository Trust Company, Attn:  
Supervisor, Call Notification Department, 570 Washington Blvd., Jersey City, NJ  07310, not less than thirty (30) days nor more 
than sixty (60) days prior to May 16, 2024 and to the MSRB electronically through the Electronic Municipal Market Access 
(EMMA) System website at www.emma.msrb.org.  

**Represents a portion of the principal amount outstanding of this maturity. 

http://www.emma.msrb.org/


QB\89269177.1 
 

 

 

EXHIBIT A-2 

NOTICE OF PARTIAL CALL* 

Regarding 

CITY OF PLYMOUTH 
SHEBOYGAN COUNTY, WISCONSIN 

GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2015A 
DATED JUNE 3, 2015 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Bonds of the above-referenced issue which 
mature on the date and in the amount; bear interest at the rate; and have a CUSIP No. as set forth 
below have been called by the City for prior payment on May 16, 2024 at a redemption price 
equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest to the date of prepayment: 

Maturity Date Principal Amount Interest Rate CUSIP No. 
05/01/2025 $655,000** 2.375% 730111LL3 

 
The City shall deposit federal or other immediately available funds sufficient for such 
redemption at the office of The Depository Trust Company on or before May 16, 2024. 

Said Bonds will cease to bear interest on May 16, 2024. 

By Order of the 
Common Council 
City of Plymouth 
City Clerk 

Dated ________________________ 
_____________ 

* To be provided by registered or certified mail, overnight express delivery, facsimile transmission, electronic 
transmission or in any other manner required by The Depository Trust Company, to The Depository Trust Company, Attn:  
Supervisor, Call Notification Department, 570 Washington Blvd., Jersey City, NJ  07310, not less than thirty (30) days nor more 
than sixty (60) days prior to May 16, 2024 and to the MSRB electronically through the Electronic Municipal Market Access 
(EMMA) System website at www.emma.msrb.org.  

**Represents a portion of the principal amount outstanding of this maturity. 

http://www.emma.msrb.org/


QB\89269177.1 
 

 

 

EXHIBIT A-3 

NOTICE OF PARTIAL CALL* 

Regarding 

CITY OF PLYMOUTH 
SHEBOYGAN COUNTY, WISCONSIN 

GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016A 
DATED MAY 18, 2016 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Bonds of the above-referenced issue which 
mature on the date and in the amount; bear interest at the rate; and have a CUSIP No. as set forth 
below have been called by the City for prior payment on May 16, 2024 at a redemption price 
equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest to the date of prepayment: 

Maturity Date Principal Amount Interest Rate CUSIP No. 
04/01/2025 $500,000** 2.00% 730111LV1 

 
The City shall deposit federal or other immediately available funds sufficient for such 
redemption at the office of The Depository Trust Company on or before May 16, 2024. 

Said Bonds will cease to bear interest on May 16, 2024. 

By Order of the 
Common Council 
City of Plymouth 
City Clerk 

Dated ________________________ 
_____________ 

* To be provided by registered or certified mail, overnight express delivery, facsimile transmission, electronic 
transmission or in any other manner required by The Depository Trust Company, to The Depository Trust Company, Attn:  
Supervisor, Call Notification Department, 570 Washington Blvd., Jersey City, NJ  07310, not less than thirty (30) days nor more 
than sixty (60) days prior to May 16, 2024 and to the MSRB electronically through the Electronic Municipal Market Access 
(EMMA) System website at www.emma.msrb.org.  

**Represents a portion of the principal amount outstanding of this maturity. 

http://www.emma.msrb.org/


 

 
 
 
City of Plymouth 
128 Smith St. - P.O. Box 107 
Plymouth, WI  53073-0107 
  
 

 
  
 

 
 
 

Telephone: (920) 893-3745 
Facsimile: (920) 893-0183 

     Web Site:        plymouthgov.com 
 
 

 
DATE:  April 4, 2024 

TO:  Mayor and Common Council 
 
FROM: Tim Blakeslee, City Administrator/Utilities Manager   
 
RE: Approval of Bid Award to Pennsylvania Transformer Technologies, Inc (PTTI) for 

a Substation Transformer 
 
 
 
Background:  
Plymouth Utilities is responsible for the construction and maintenance of electric distribution lines 
to local homes and businesses. The electric distribution equipment in the southwestern portion of 
the Plymouth service territory has reached near capacity in recent years. In addition, ANR Pipeline 
Company (ANR), a current customer of Plymouth Utilities, notified the utility that they are planning 
to improve their Kewaskum Compressor Station, increasing capacity and shifting primary means 
of compression from gas-fired to electric, as part of its own reliability and improvement program. 
To improve the electric reliability of service for all customers and to support the increased load at 
the compressor station, Plymouth Utilities has committed to constructing a new substation by the 
end of 2025. Plymouth Utilities will be responsible for the construction and maintenance of the 
new substation. The Public Service Commission (PSC) approved the Certificate of Authority (CA) 
to construct the substation at their open meeting on February 1, 2024 and issued their final order 
on March 4, 2024. 
 
The items with the longest lead time for the substation are the substation transformers. The order 
for the first substation transformer was placed in summer 2023 to make the projected in-service 
by the end of 2025 after consent was granted from the Public Service Commission due to 
transformer lead time. Now that the final order for the CA has been issued, the second transformer 
can be ordered. Per Forster Eginnering it is highly suggested that substations with multiple 
transformers have transformers from two different manufacturers for reliability purposes (I.e. in 
the unlikely event there is an issue with one transformer the second transformer will not have the 
same issue).   
 
The second low bidder from the bid opening in June 15, 2023 was Pennsylvania Transformer 
Technologies, Inc (PTTI). PTTI’s bid included an escalator clause, allowing the purchase price to 
be adjusted over time as the price of raw materials and labor changed. They have agreed to honor 
that bid. When the current commodity indices are applied the updated bid is $1,486,091 (Increase 
of $15,840). Per the substation agreement, ANR will pay 8/11 of the cost of the substation (which 
includes the transformers).  
 
It is recommended by Forster Engineering that the substation transformer bid from PTTI be 
approved in an amount of $1,486,091. Staff requests Common Council approval of the bid subject 
to attorney/staff review and approval of the terms and conditions. 
 



Recommendation:  
Approval of Substation Transformer Bid from is Pennsylvania Transformer Technologies, Inc for 
$1,486,091 subject to attorney/staff review and approval of the terms and conditions. 
 
Attachments: 

1. Recommendation from Forster Engineering 
2. Bid Tab 







BID TABULATION - SUBSTATION TRANSFORMER
Plymouth Utilities 
Substation Transformer 
Project No. P05-23A, Specification 4140
Bids opened June 15, 2023

Bid submitted by: Pennsylvania Transformer WEG Virginia Transformer Corp.
Manufacturer's representative: CL Sales Power One EUSCO

1  General outline drawings included? Yes Yes Yes

2 Transformer manufacturer
Pennsylvania Transformer Technology, 

Inc.
WEG Transformers Virginia Transformer Corp.

3 Location where windings are manufactured Canonsburg, PA Tizayuca, MX Roanoke, VA
4 Location where transformer is assembled Canonsburg, PA Tizayuca, MX Roanoke, VA
5a Unit will be shipped by? Truck Truck Truck
5b Arrival at Site FOB Destination Job Site
6 Oil will be shipped (installed/separate from the unit) Separate Installed Installed
7 Tank will be shipped (dry air/nitrogen/oil) filled Dry Air Oil Filled oil filled (except makeup oil)
8 Radiators will be shipped (installed/separate from unit) Separate Separate Separate
9a HV bushings will be shipped (installed/separate from unit) Separate Separate Separate

9b HV bushings - manufacturer and type PCORE, POC, POC650G0800S PCORE/Condensor/POC650G0800S PCORE - POC650G0800KS

10a Separate Separate Separate

10b HV surge arrester - manufacturer and type Hubbell, polymer housed station class Arrester Hubbell/Polymer/EVP HUBBELL - EVP011500-3001

11a LV bushings will be shipped (installed/separate from unit) Installed Separate Installed
11b LV bushing - manufacturer and type PCORE, POC, B-88723-70 PCORE/Condensor/B-88723-70 PCORE - B-89113-70
11c LV bushing - adder for PCORE PRC subtract $350/bushing NA
12a LV surge arresters shipped (installed/separate from unit) Separate separate Installed

12b LV surge arresters - manufacturer and type Hubbell, polymer housed station class Arrester Hubbell/Polymer/EVP HUBBELL - EVP000900-3001

13a Is certified test data for short circuit provided? No No No
13b If no, will unit be modelled? Yes Yes Yes
14a Flat pad terminals are provided as specified? Yes Yes Yes
14b If no, describe the proposed connections

15 Oil type Minerall Oil Type II Mineral Oil Inhibited Ergon - HYVolt II Mineral Oil-Type II

16a Main Coil design will be (round/elliptical/rectangular) Round Round Round
16b High voltage winding wil be Disc Continous Disc Continuous Disc
16c Low voltage winding will be Helical Helical Continuous Disc or Helical
17 The windings will be Copper Copper Copper
18 Preventative auto transformer design will be and ___ wound Round and Layer wound Round and Layer wound Round and Helical wound
19 Series transformer ratio 2 Not Applicable N/A

20 Regulating voltage coil design and _______ wound Round and Multistart Helical Round and Helical Multi - Star wound Round and Layer wound

21 Regulating voltage winding will be Fully Distibuted Fully Distributed Fully Distributed
22 Type of load tap changer Vacuum Vacuum Vacuum
23 Will LTC viewing ports be provided N/A No No
24 Will maintenance-free dehydrating breather be provided Yes Yes Yes
25 Will oil filtration system be provided? No No No

26
1,000,000 electrical and mechanical 

operations before contact or vacuum 
bottle replacement

1,000,000 Operations 1,000,000 (per manufacturer-MR)

27 Yes Yes
Yes (Not by hand crank, but by switch 

only)
28 Yes Yes Yes
29 The high voltage winding will be connected Delta Delta Delta
30 The low voltage winding will be connected Wye Wye Wye
31 High voltage will lead the low voltage by 30 30 30
32 The following losses are guaranteed maximum values:
32a No load losses (kW)       at 20C 11.7 10.5 kW 11
32b Winding losses (kW)    at    MVA, 85C 71 kW (C-N tap) at 15 MVA 54.0 kW at 15 MVA 75 kW at 15 MVA

32c
Total losses (kW)   at       MVA, 85C

82.7 kW at 15 MVA 64.5 kW at 15 MVA 86 kW (Aux. Loss excluded) at 15 MVA

33 Exciting current maximum values:
33a Percent exciting current at 100% voltage 0.5% 0.24% 0.316% (approx)
33b Percent exciting current at 110% voltage 1.2% 0.45% 1.262% (approx)
34 Warranty:
34a Length of warranty period 5 years 5 years 60/60 Months Extended Warranty
34b Is in/out coverage included and for how long yes - 1st year capped at 10% yes, first year only Yes included, for only 1st Year
34c Does the warranty cover accessories, the core and the coil? yes yes Yes
34d State the optional price adders to extend the warranty: no quote N/A (Included in base price)
35 No Yes Yes
36 112 days 20 weeks ARO 126-140 days
37 96-100 weeks ARO 55-60 Weeks ARAD 315-350 days
38 Yes Yes No

39 This bid includes exception to the following section(s) of these 
Bidding Documents:

Per 2.36 Transformer Tank Features - 
Construction, Clause C; Main Tank will 

have sloped cover
Per 2.16 Transformer Accessories - 

Bushing Current Transformers, Clause 
E; The Current Transformer 

Nameplate will be located on the 
Control Cabinet Door (outside).

Per 2.27 Transformer Accessories  - 
Control Panel, Clause B; The Cabinet 
will be with stainless steel concealed 

hinges, per VTC Standards.

Per 2.32 Transformer Accessories - 
Piping for Hydrogen and Gas 

Monitoring; Only provisions will be 
provided.

Per 1.09 Shipping, Clause I; VTC offers 
shipping terms to be FOB to Job Site, 

with Prepaid & Add.

Base bid per bid form $1,470,251 $1,681,300 $1,428,550

The expected number of operations at 100% transformer ONAN rating before contact or vacuum bottle 
replacement:

Can the load tap changer be manually operated safely, without de-energizing the transformer?

Does the winding design assume an infinite bus limited only by the impedance of the transformer?

Are costs for a manufacturer's representative included in the base bid price as required?  
The anticipated lead time for submittals, in calendar days after notification of contract award, shall be

Bid Items

HV surge arresters will be shipped (installed/separate from unit)

The manufacturer will have complete responsibility for the unit until

The anticipated lead time to complete deliveries, in calendar days after approval of the aforementioned 
Are supplemental terms and conditions provided with this bid? 

Plus freight ~$46,0004-4-24 Updated Price $1,486,091 


	Agenda 04/09/2024
	Consent Agenda
	3A. Minutes for March 26, 2024
	3BI. Vouchers 03/01/2024 - 03/31/2024
	3C. Minutes Acknowledged for Filing
	3D. Building Report for March 2024
	3E. Approve Application for Event / Street Closure from: Plymouth Advancement Association for the Annual Fallooza Fall Festival on Saturday September 14
	3F. Approve Application for Reserve "Class B" Liquor License and Class "B" Beer License for Big Billy's Family LLC, at 437 E Mill St.
	3G. Receive and File Annual Liquor License Report

	Proclamations
	6A. Recognition of Writers of the Future Week April 21 - April 27, 2024
	6B. Recognition of Arbor Day in the City of Plymouth April 26, 2024
	6C. Recognition of National Library Week April 7-April 13, 2024

	Resolutions
	7A. No. 3 - Approving the City of Plymouth Adjusted US Census Bureau Urban Area Boundary
	7B. No. 4 - Resolution Authorizing  the Partial Redemption of the City's General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A, dated September 19, 2013; General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2015A, dated June 3, 2015; and General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016A, dated May 18, 2016

	New Business
	8A. Approve Transformer Bid from Pennsyvania Transformer Technologies, Inc. 




